
AGENDA REPORTS PACK 

Wednesday, 1st November, 2017 at 6.00 pm

Room 102, Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, London E8 1EA

Contact: Peter Gray
Governance Services 
Tel: 020 8356 3326
Email: governance@hackney.gov.uk

Tim Shields 
Chief Executive 

The press and public are welcome to attend 
this meeting



Board Membership and Additional Attendees
Board Members

Cllr Jonathan McShane
Cabinet Member, Health, Social care and 
Culture  (Chair)

Dr Clare Highton
Chair, City and Hackney Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Dr Penny Bevan
Director of Public Health
Hackney Council

Paul Fleming
Chair, Hackney Healthwatch

Navina Evans 
Chief Executive, East London Foundation 
Trust

Tracey Fletcher
Chief Executive, Homerton University 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Alistair Wallace 
Health and Social Care Forum

Deputy Mayor Anntoinette Bramble
Cabinet Member, Children’s Services

Anne Canning 
Group Director, Adults, Children’s Services, 
Community Health,Hackney Council

Kim Wright
Group Director, Housing and Public Realm, 
Hackney Council

Paul Haigh
Chief Officer, City and Hackney Clinical 
Commissioning Group

Laura Sharpe
GP Confederation

Raj Radia
Chair, Local Pharmaceutical Committee

NHS England Representative
Neil Roberts
Head of Primary Care
NHS England London central, North and 
East

Independent Advisers
Jim Gamble
Chair, City and Hackney Safeguarding 
Children Board

Adi Cooper
Chair, City and Hackney Safeguarding Adult 
Board

Additional Attendees
Moira Griffiths
Group Care and Support Director, Family 
Mosaic Better Homes Partnership 

Jackie Brett
Health and Social Care Forum 

Sonia Davis
Chief Inspector, Metropolitan Police

Ida Scoullos
Community Empowerment Network

Peter Gray
Governance Services Officer
Hackney Council



AGENDA
Wednesday, 1st November, 2017

ORDER OF BUSINESS

1  Welcome and Introductions 

2  Declarations of Interest - Members to Declare as Appropriate 

3  Minutes of the Previous Meeting 1 - 6

4  Community Voice 

5  A Dementia Friendly Borough 7 - 12

6  Report of the City and Hackney Adults Safeguarding Board 13 - 82

7  Complaints Charter 83 - 90

8  Dates of Future Meetings - 10th January 2018 

Item No Title Page No



ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS
Hackney Council’s Code of Conduct applies to all Members of the Council, the Mayor and co-
opted Members. 

This note is intended to provide general guidance for Members on declaring interests. 
However, you may need to obtain specific advice on whether you have an interest in a 
particular matter. If you need advice, you can contact:

 The Director of Legal
 The Legal Adviser to the committee; or
 Governance Services.

If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before the 
meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the circumstances 
before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take. 

1.  Do you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter on the 
agenda or which is being considered at the meeting?

You will have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter if it: 

i. relates to an interest that you have already registered in Parts A and C of the Register of 
Pecuniary Interests of you or your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as if they 
were your spouse/civil partner;

ii. relates to an interest that should be registered in Parts A and C of the  Register of 
Pecuniary Interests of your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as if they were 
your spouse/civil partner, but you have not yet done so; or

iii. affects your well-being or financial position or that of your spouse/civil partner, or anyone 
living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner.

2.  If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an item on the 
agenda you must:

i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant agenda item) 
as soon as it becomes apparent to you (subject to the rules regarding sensitive interests). 

ii. You must leave the room when the item in which you have an interest is being discussed.  
You cannot stay in the meeting room or public gallery whilst discussion of the item takes 
place and you cannot vote on the matter.  In addition, you must not seek to improperly 
influence the decision.

iii. If you have, however, obtained dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or Standards 
Committee you may remain in the room and participate in the meeting.  If dispensation 
has been granted it will stipulate the extent of your involvement, such as whether you can 
only be present to make representations, provide evidence or whether you are able to 
fully participate and vote on the matter in which you have a pecuniary interest.

3.  Do you have any other non-pecuniary interest on any matter on 
the agenda which is being considered at the meeting?



You will have ‘other non-pecuniary interest’ in a matter if:

i. It relates to an external body that you have been appointed to as a Member or in another 
capacity; or 

ii. It relates to an organisation or individual which you have actively engaged in supporting.

4. If you have other non-pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda 
you must:

i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant agenda item) 
as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 

ii. You may remain in the room, participate in any discussion or vote provided that 
contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matters are not under consideration 
relating to the item in which you have an interest.  

iii. If you have an interest in a contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matter 
under consideration, you must leave the room unless you have obtained a dispensation 
from the Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee.  You cannot stay in the room or 
public gallery whilst discussion of the item takes place and you cannot vote on the matter.  
In addition, you must not seek to improperly influence the decision.  Where members of 
the public are allowed to make representations, or to give evidence or answer questions 
about the matter you may, with the permission of the meeting, speak on a matter then 
leave the room. Once you have finished making your representation, you must leave the 
room whilst the matter is being discussed.  

iv. If you have been granted dispensation, in accordance with the Council’s dispensation 
procedure you may remain in the room.  If dispensation has been granted it will stipulate 
the extent of your involvement, such as whether you can only be present to make 
representations, provide evidence or whether you are able to fully participate and vote on 
the matter in which you have a non pecuniary interest.  

Further Information

Advice can be obtained from Suki Binjal, Interim Director of Legal, on 020 8356 6237 or email 
suki.binjal@hackney.gov.uk

mailto:Gifty.Edila@hackney.gov.uk


Rights of Press and Public to Report on Meetings

Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the press 
and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its committees, 
through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital and social media 
providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and providing that the 
person reporting or providing the commentary is present at the meeting.

Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to notify the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if possible, or any 
time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the start of the meeting.

The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area from 
which all recording must take place at a meeting.

The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, hear 
and record the meeting.  If those intending to record a meeting require any other 
reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring Officer in advance of 
the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do so.

The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present 
recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting.   Anyone 
acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease recording or 
may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may include: moving from 
any designated recording area; causing excessive noise; intrusive lighting; 
interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the public who have asked not to be 
filmed.

All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on recording 
councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the conduct of the 
meeting.  The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the public present if they 
have objections to being visually recorded.  Those visually recording a meeting are 
asked to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed or photographed.   
Failure by someone recording a meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not 
wish to be filmed and photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease 
recording or in their exclusion from the meeting.

If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to 
consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all 
recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and public 
are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or hear the 
proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential or exempt 
information is under consideration.

Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted.

FS 566728



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

WEDNESDAY, 6TH SEPTEMBER, 2017

Councillors Present: Cllr Jonathan McShane (Chair)

Deputy Mayor Anntoinette Bramble, Dr Penny 
Bevan, Paul Fleming, Tracey Fletcher,  Alistair 
Wallace, Raj Radia, Laura Sharpe,  Paul Haigh, 
Anne Canning 

Officers in Attendance:  Gareth wall (Head of Public Health), Miranda Ecles 
(Public Health Strategist), Helen Brock (Public 
Health Strategist), Peter Gray (Governance)  

Also in Attendance:  Malcolm Alexander (Hackney Healthwatch), Jon 
Williams (Hackney Healthwatch), Kevin Cleary 
(Chief Medical Officer)

1. Welcome and Introductions 

1.1      The chair welcomed all those present and introductions were made.

2. Apologies for absence. 

2.1      Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Dr Navina Evans and Dr 
Clare Highton.

3.     Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

3.1 The minutes were agreed as a correct record. 

4.   Declarations of Interest - Members to Declare as Appropriate 

4.1   There were no declarations of interests.

5.      Hackney Youth Council

5.1   Representatives of the Youth Council presented to the Board on issues around 
mental health for young people. They made reference to the stereotypes and 
challenges that surround the condition together with campaigning underway on this. It 
was considered that there was a lack of awareness around the realities of dealing with 
mental illness and that a number of people with the condition had to suffer in silence. It 
was considered that education would help to counteract this. In response to a question 
on what Hackney Council could do to help it was suggested that an open session on 
understanding mental health would be advantageous and that this could be held early 
in the school term. Penny Bevan asked about awareness of sexual health. 
Representatives considered that there was a need for education in the area of sexual 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Wednesday, 6th September, 2017 
health and acknowledged that a single mistake could change a life. The Chair thanked 
the representatives from the Youth Parliament for their valuable contribution.

6.      Community Voice 

6.1   Emine told the Board of her experience as a smoker in the Turkish Community, 
including being unhappy and lonely. She told the Board that so many people smoked 
in her community. She, herself, had been smoking for 17 years until such time as she 
secured the help of a life coach in giving up smoking. In response to a question from 
Penny Bevan she told the Board that she had not been aware of the existence of 
smoking services in Hackney. 

6.2   Jon Williams read out a statement from Ali on his experiences as a smoker in the 
Turkish community. 

“When I was at the age of 14, I took out my first cigarette to smoke from the pocket left 
on the table at home. The main reasons of starting smoking were because of family 
problems I have been witnessing and smoking became a habit when I start living 
myself in my very early age, I like having friends around which were already smoking, 
as we spent more time together we were smoking to let the time fly. During that my 
first teen years I felt what is like to be lonely. When I was 14 everyone in my family 
were addicted to smoking. Cigarette packets all over the house. I had the mindset of a 
kid at the time and I thought all those excuses were more than enough to start. I 
became so addicted cigarettes were presented like a bowl full of sweets.

In my opinion on why men smokes covers a variety reasons and excuses.
Firstly, they think it can be to prove his manhood. On the other hand too much 
responsibility because of being man and his workload might be too much. All those 
and financial pressures might be effective as well as they are not fond of themselves 
at those early ages and other emotional issues…. 
Also, as smoking becomes a lifestyle for the user, they start buying expensive well-
advertised cigarettes to show their social status: as people around them smoke which 
can also be a reason of why they start. 
Unemployment making people lazy and hopeless that’s can be another reason of 
starting smoking.
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
7.     Annual Tobacco Strategy 

7.1    Gareth Wall introduced the report on the Annual Tobacco Control Strategy. He 
told the Board that a Roadshow had been arranged to gather evidence to help inform 
the strategy. It was considered that there were links between smoking and other 
societal problems. He reported progress on creating no smoking areas within the 
Borough. He referred to the fact that there was an opportunity to try to target disguised 
mental health problems.   

7.2   In response to a question Penny Bevan confimred to the Board that there was no 
evidence that people who smoked e-cigarettes moved on to smoking tobacco. 

7.3 The Board heard of concerns that there was a need to improve the focus of 
current work in this area in relation to minority communities. Raj Radia told the Board 
of the work carried out at Pharmacies in reaching out to minorities in regard to 
smoking, including employing Turkish speaking people. Miranda Ecles told the Board 
that 6-7 percent of smokers attend Hackney’s smoking services. She confirmed that 

Page 2



Wednesday, 6th September, 2017 
many people did not wish to access the service and most smokers tried to give up on 
their own. 

AGREED: 

1.    To agree the recommendations outlined in the report regarding the focus of the 
tobacco control work over the next 12 months and beyond.

2.  That members review their own organisation’s actions over the last 12 months 
regarding reducing smoking prevalence in the Borough. 

3. To commit to a representative from each organisation attending the third the third 
tobacco control strategy workshop in 2018.

4.  To endorse the action plan

8.     Illegal Tobacco Control Road Show in June 2017 
 
AGREED:
To note the report.

9.  Smoke-Free Spaces Update

9.1    Tracy Fletcher told the Board that work was ongoing on making the area outside 
the Homerton into a smoke-free zone. Dr Kevin Cleary told the Board that the area 
around the East London Foundation Trust was now smoke-free. A trial of the use of e-
cigarettes at the Trust was ongoing.

10.    Alcohol Strategy Consultation

10.1   Gareth Wall and Helen Brock introduced the report on consultation on the draft 
alcohol strategy which set out the priorities for reducing alcohol related harm over the 
next three years. It identified four broad objectives: 

 Encourage healthier drinking behaviours 
 Commission appropriate and responsive treatment services
 Support families carers and young people affected by alcohol misuse 
 Improve drinking environments

Focus groups, made up of community groups and other stakeholders were being 
consulted on the strategy. Members of the Board were asked to submit their views. 
Laura Sharpe confirmed that the strategy was being circulated to GP practices in the 
Borough. It was noted that a detailed action plan would be developed to support the 
delivery of the final version of the strategy. Helen Brock emphasised the importance of 
signposting in any alcohol strategy. Anne Canning asked about levels of drinking 
among children in the Borough and Helen Brock told the Board that 3 percent of 
respondent children and young people reported that they drank. The national figure in 
this regard was 6 percent. 

AGREED:

To note that formal public consultation was underway until 9th October 2017 and that 
all are invited to submit comments on the full draft of the strategy through this process.     

Page 3



Wednesday, 6th September, 2017 

11.  Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

11.1   Penny Bevan introduced the report. 

AGREED:

That approval to publish the final Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment be delegated to 
the Director of Public Health for the Borough of Hackney, and the final assessment 
provided for information to the Health and Wellbeing Board in April 2018.                                                      

12.    East London Health and Care Partnership / STP 

12.1   Paul Haigh introduced the report providing a further update to the Board on the 
development of the East London Health and Care Partnership and the NEL 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan.  

AGREED: 

To note the verbal update on the East London Health and Care Partnerships and the 
NEL STP. 

13.       Annual Public Health Report - For information 

13.1    Penny Bevan introduced the report focussing on children and young people in 
the City of London and Hackney. She told the Board that Hackney had a significantly 
younger population than nationally, with 65,300 children and young people under 20 
years old.  Penny Bevan told the Board that the number of young people was forecast 
to rise by 6 % over the next five years. The Borough of Hackney had seen a decrease 
in deprived neighbourhoods and was now the 11th most deprived in the country. She 
referred to improving life opportunities and the importance of reducing health 
inequalities throughout a person’s life in the Borough.  

AGREED:

To note the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health. 

14.      Complaints Charter 

13.1    Jon Williams introduced the report, informing the Board that LPC, CQC and the 
GP Confederation had signed up to the charter. The Chair thanked all concerned with 
the preparation of the complaints charter.

AGREED:

1. To adopt the Complaints Charter.

2. To publicise it on their websites, wards and waiting areas; and

3. To provide a copy of the Charter to patents and users within their Complaint pack.

Page 4



Wednesday, 6th September, 2017 

4. To publicly launch the Charter in order to ensure that local people are aware of the 
aspirations that local health and social care bodies are committed to.

15.     Date of next meeting - 1st November 2017 

Duration of the meeting: 6pm – 8pm 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e

Progress Report to Hackney Health and Well-being Board
Item No: Date:  1st November 2017
Subject: Hackney Dementia Friendly Community
Report from: Sandra Cater – Hackney Dementia Friendly 

Community Coordinator
Summary: Since  the last report to the HWB Board in 

(Jan 2017) the Hackney Dementia Action 
Alliance (HDAA) successfully  met the 
criteria to work towards the London Borough 
of Hackney  becoming a Dementia Friendly 
Community ( May 2017).
This report outlines how this was achieved, 
what is working well, what needs developing 
and next steps.

Recommendations: To provide strategic endorsement and 
develop members’ organisational processes 
that support and promote the continuing 
growth and strength of Hackney as a 
Dementia Friendly Community.

Contacts:
Ms Sandra Cater 
sandra.cater@alzheimers.org.uk

Councillor Yvonne Maxwell - 
yvonne.maxwell@hackney.gov.uk

Ms Emma Higgins
emma.higgins@homerton.nhs.uk

Summary and Contents 1
Definition and Background 2
Governance and Membership 3
Priorities 3and4
Achievements 3,4,5and 6
Next Steps 6

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:sandra.cater@alzheimers.org.uk
mailto:yvonne.maxwell@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:emma.higgins@homerton.nhs.uk


2 | P a g e

1. Definition and Background                                                                                             
Hackney Dementia Friendly Community is a social movement driven by the Hackney 
Dementia Action Alliance members from across all sectors striving to ensure that 
people affected by dementia are understood, respected and are confident that they 
can contribute to community life. In our dementia friendly community people will be 
aware and understand dementia, and people affected by dementia will feel included 
and involved. People with dementia in Hackney recently (community café 
conversation 20th October) described a dementia friendly community as” one where 
you feel welcomed in shops, safe on buses, and don’t feel silly to ask for help”.

The priorities/work-streams are:

1. Health and Social Care
2. Housing (and Social Care)
3. Arts, Culture, and Recreation
4. Schools, education and young people
5. Transport
6. Businesses, shops, banks, post offices
7. Emergency services

2. People affected by Dementia’s Voice.                                                                         
People affected by dementia are regularly contributing by supporting the Dementia 
Community Coordinator to identify dementia friendly local businesses, businesses that 
need support. A community conversation happen quarterly at the dementia café finding 
out more about what dementia friendly means in reality, what are the barriers to 
maintaining a social life? 

The highlights from these conversations to date are:

 Community pharmacists are very dementia friendly – understanding, and providing 
person-centred service.

 Community transport availability and reliability, especially Dial-a-Ride is often a 
barrier, stopping people going out and getting involved, although individual drivers 
are dementia friendly.

 People attending community cafes and Singing for the Brain enjoy them and would 
like to see weekly cafes and a dementia-friendly specific venue in Hackney as the 
dementia journey progresses it is more challenging to attend “mainstream /generic” 
services.

 People affected by dementia in Hackney would benefit from more support/befriending 
time allocated to them, especially with regard to going out, respite for unpaid carers.

Page 8



3 | P a g e

3. Governance.      
The Dementia Friendly Community Coordinator is a full-time post funded until June 2018 by 
the London Borough of Hackney and managed by the Alzheimer’s Society.

Hackney Dementia Action Alliance Steering Group meets every two months to monitor 
progress, share ideas and influence decision making.

Work stream Task Groups have started to take forward the priorities and report back to the 
HDAA Steering Group and involve all members and supporters of the HDAA to deliver.

People affected by dementia informed, involved and engaged in working toward a Dementia 
Friendly Community.  Monthly Newsletters to Dementia Adviser Service Users, coordinator 
is invited to carers groups and community cafes to gain feedback. A community conversation 
held on 20th October to inform tprogress.

4. Membership and Supporters.                                                                                            
The Hackney Dementia Action Alliance remains an important driver in developing Hackney 
as a Dementia Friendly Borough with a membership of 30 cross-sector organisations. Key to 
the success of our local Dementia Friendly Community is the buy-in and strong support at 
senior, decision making level of the member organisations locally and nationally.  A good 
example of this is business and banking organisations such as Iceland, Tesco and HSBC 
who are signed up nationally cascading information down to local stores, and locally the 
London Borough of Hackney and the Homerton Hospital University Trust.

Our local model encourages Hackney Dementia Action Alliance members from each sector 
to network, encourage others from the sector to join, pool resources and achieve our goals; 
for example the Housing and Care sector working together to ensure that people with 
dementia experiences of moving in to supported housing or a care home is  as 
straightforward as possible.

5.  Priorities, actions and achievements:

5.1       Health and Social Care                                                                                             
All GP practices in Hackney are committed to becoming Dementia Friendly.
At the GP Confederation workshops in June 2017 representatives from all practices 
worked through case studies, strengthened links with their Dementia Advisers and 
agreed actions with The Dementia Friendly Community Coordinator to: 

- Ensure their whole workforce become Dementia Friends 
- That they ensure their practice environment is as dementia friendly as 

possible (using the Dementia Action Alliance Environmental Checklist).
- Identify a specific area for service improvement for people affected by  

dementia 

Page 9



4 | P a g e

Nineteen GP practices are taking part in a Hackney Carers Centre project to display 
Dementia information on a designated noticeboard.

All community pharmacists in Hackney are Dementia Friends and participate in 
raising awareness events, providing medicines delivery and review service for people 
affected.

Homerton University Hospital Trust continues to improve services and activities for 
patients in their care and people affected by dementia and are an active member of 
the HDAA.

Hackney HealthWatch are collecting service users and people affected by dementia’s 
experiences, comments and criticisms.

 Housing (and Social Care)
The aim of this HDAA members’ group is to work with people affected by dementia to 
learn more about what makes the place where they live dementia friendly. At their 
meeting on 2nd August it was agreed to 

- develop a Hackney housing /built environment network /virtual network to 
influence design, members communicating by email so far.

- look at design of new builds to enable people to live at home for as long as 
possible 

- ensure all staff have dementia friends information sessions.
- to utilise community library resources
- raise awareness re housing officers, TMOs, TRAs – aware of signs to look for 

and identify people who may be coming to their attention such as not paying rent, 
issues with their neighbours etc. 

Page 10



5 | P a g e

 Arts, Culture, and Recreation
Hackney has a diverse and vibrant arts, culture, leisure and recreation sector 
reflecting the communities it serves. There is already a commitment by the majority 
of provider organisations in this sector to be inclusive of people affected by dementia 
in Hackney. They will support, influence and benefit the other priority areas working 
towards a dementia friendly community.
The Arts, Culture and Recreation HDAA Members Group are leading on this:
- to recruit all local arts, culture, leisure and recreation organisations in Hackney to 

be members of HDAA and develop in to a strong dementia -friendly sector 
network by December 2017. 

- to hold a LBH Dementia Friendly Arts, Culture and Recreation Festival in 
Dementia Awareness Week 2018, (planning commenced September 2017).

For volunteers to be trained up in January 2017 to interview at least 20 local people 
affected by dementia to hear their experiences of the arts, culture and leisure 
services in Hackney including feedback from the Festival (A local volunteer film 
maker is available to record these experiences).

 Schools, education and young people                                                                         
An HDAA members Group has not been set up for this sector as yet. The DFC 
contacted all heads of sixth form in May 2017 and has provided information materials 
to all Sixth Form Heads for them to utilise in PSHE lessons and Assembly.

So far 4 secondary schools in Hackney are engaging and have received Dementia 
Awareness Key Stage 12 and 13 assembly talks.  Our Lady Convent School in 
Stamford Hill are signed up to becoming a Dementia Friendly School and are making 
links with local care homes and people affected by Dementia.  Petchey Academy, 
Lower Clapton Girls and Skinners are also getting involved from November onwards.

 Transport
For people affected by dementia to receive friendly travel services and for them to 
report an improvement in services is key to Hackney being a Dementia Friendly 
Community.  The sector membership group is working with TfL, Hackney Community 
Transport Team and Aviva  to ensure  all bus drivers in Hackney receive Dementia-
Friendly sessions, and Dementia Friendly Champions identified. So far half of the 
HCT workforce is Dementia Friends with more sessions booked for November.

Page 11



6 | P a g e

 Businesses, shops, banks, post offices
Iceland, Marks and Spencer’s, Tesco, Barclays Bank and HSBC in Hackney are all 
signed up to being dementia friendly, with all staff being Dementia Friends, personal 
shoppers/banking support available for people who request it. A decline in the 
number of high street banks has been noted by people affected by dementia.

This sector members group is hosting the December HDAA meeting.
A “High St blitz” of Mare St and Kingsland Shopping Centre are planned for April 
2018.

 Emergency services
All Fire Brigade personnel in Hackney have attended Dementia Friends sessions 
(June-September2017) and have strengthened links with local care homes, 
supported housing and publicised Home Fire Safety checks at local Dementia Café.

All Ambulance personnel working in Hackney have received Dementia Friends 
training and two of them went on to become Dementia Friends Champions.

The local police team are in the process of confirming dates for Dementia Friends 
sessions and rolling out the Herbert Protocol.

General Dementia Friendly Community information:
Since March 2017, 560 new Dementia Friends have been made in Hackney, the 
majority of them work for the London Borough of Hackney, local emergency services 
and local businesses. There are 10 new Dementia Friends Champions in Hackney 
recruited from the Dementia Friends sessions, two are Turkish/Kurdish speakers, 
and one is a BSL interpreter. 

6. Next Steps:                                                                                                                          
November 2017 HDAA - meeting to monitor progress, plan December Members 
Meeting and project manage Festival 2018.

December 2017 - London Borough of Hackney to join HDAA as an organisation, 
motion to full Council
                                                                                        
Continue to increase HDAA membership and raise profile of Dementia Friendly 
Community.    
                                                    
Increase people affected by dementia’s involvement in all aspects of working towards 
a Dementia Friendly Community.

Page 12



Report to Hackney Health and Wellbeing Board

Item No: Date:  1st November 2017
Subject: City and Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 

2016/17
Report From: Dr Adi Cooper, Independent Chair

City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board
Summary: This report provides an assessment of the key developments 

in local multi-agency adult safeguarding activities in 
2016/2017 in the City of London and London Borough of 
Hackney. This is presented as a partnership document. It is 
representative of the work carried out by statutory and other 
agencies to realise the vision of the City and Hackney 
Safeguarding Adults Board, to assist people to live free from 
harm in communities that are intolerant of abuse, working 
together to prevent abuse and know what to do when it 
happens.

Recommendations: That the Hackney Health and Wellbeing Board:
Is aware of the accomplishments of the City and Hackney 
Safeguarding Adults Board (CHSAB) during 2016/17.

Contacts: Dr Adi Cooper, Independent Chair

Melba Gomes, CHSAB Manager, 
Melba.Gomes@hackney.gov.uk, 020 8356 7338

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Melba.Gomes@hackney.gov.uk


1. Introduction 

1.1 The London Borough of Hackney and the City of London have diverse, vibrant 
communities, with many organisations and individuals not only providing 
effective adult safeguarding, but also committed to the Safeguarding Adults 
Board and the partnership it represents. The City and Hackney Safeguarding 
Adults Board is a multi-agency partnership of statutory and non-statutory 
stakeholders, including the City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group, 
Metropolitan Police, East London Foundation Trust, London Fire Brigade, the 
Homerton NHS Foundation Trust, Housing, Providers and the Hackney Council 
for Voluntary Services. This report sets out an appraisal of safeguarding adults 
activity of those agencies across the City of London and Hackney boroughs in 
2016/2017.

1.2 The Care Act sets out a clear statutory framework for how local authorities and 
other key partners, such as care providers, health services, housing providers 
and criminal justice agencies, should work together to protect an adult’s right to 
live in safety, free from abuse and neglect. It introduces new safeguarding duties 
for local authorities including: leading a multi-agency local adult safeguarding 
system; making or causing enquiries to be made where there is a safeguarding 
concern; carrying out Safeguarding Adults Reviews; arranging for the provision 
of independent advocates; and hosting Safeguarding Adults Boards.

1.3 In setting out a statutory requirement for Safeguarding Adults Boards for the first 
time, the Care Act establishes three core duties for those Boards: The Board 
must:

a) Publish a strategic plan for each financial year that sets out how it will 
meet its main objectives and what the members will do to achieve this.

b) Conduct any Safeguarding Adults Reviews as may be required.

c) Publish an annual report detailing what the SAB has done during the 
year to achieve our main objectives and implement its strategic plan.

This annual report is provided in line with this requirement.

2. Key Achievements 

2.1. In line with its strategy, key achievements for the Board in 2016/2017 include:

2.2. Following the presentation by Detective Inspector Phil Brewer on Modern 
Slavery in the previous year, each partner identified a lead for Modern Slavery. A 
policy was adopted which provided guidance on how to work with child and adult 
victims

2.3. The Board has maintained an interest in the Children’s and Community Safety 
Partnership agenda.

Page 14



2.4. Arising from findings from a SAR, the ‘self-neglect policy’ was reviewed and 
improved. Included in this review was the review of the Community MARAC, 
which included recommendations to redefine it as a ‘High risk panel’ to avoid 
confusion with domestic abuse, and to lower the threshold for referral, in line with 
the principle of prevention of abuse and neglect. A multi-agency file audit was 
instigated, which focused on the theme of self-neglect, and priorities for 
improvement identified by SARs.

2.5. In response to the findings of a SAR, the CHSAB commissioned a report and 
best practice guide for supported housing service providers on sexuality, consent 
and sexual relations when working with older people. 

2.6. An escalation protocol was produced to provide a process for partner agencies 
to resolve, or escalate for resolution, professional disagreements regarding the 
actions, inactions or decisions of another partner agency in exercising its 
responsibilities.

2.7. To prevent cases that would be appropriate for consideration under the SAR 
protocol from slipping through the net and improve understanding, a referral 
process was agreed, circulated in all agencies and disseminated to staff.

2.8. The CHSAB funded an assurance tool for grant giving services to ensure that 
the organisations that they fund have suitable adult safeguarding policies and 
procedures, and a toolkit to support voluntary organisations to develop 
safeguarding policies. Safeguarding awareness training was made available to 
the voluntary sector. The Board has recognised the need to identify and support 
safeguarding champions in the voluntary sector.

2.9. The CHSAB funded training to build staff competence and to increase 
knowledge in particular areas of practice to prevent recurrence of issues 
identified in the SARs.

2.10. The collection and presentation of appropriate data on safeguarding activity and 
trends were reviewed and revised to inform the CHSAB works.

2.11. In line with good practice stipulated in the Care Act 2014 and further amplified in 
the Multi Agency Pan London Policy and Procedures, a representative of local 
Housing organisations was .invited to join the CHSAB.

2.12. In response to the absence of representation from the Care and Support 
services on the Board, as identified by this group themselves, members of the 
adult social care Provider Forum elected a representative to join the CHSAB.

2.13. Partners of the CHSAB and the Chair have visited community groups to engage 
with the wider community on safeguarding issues. It has agreed a SAR 
communication strategy and is working on a model for user engagement.

2.14. Members of Board have audited themselves to identify where they need to make 
improvements in adult safeguarding and have created action plans to address 
the deficits

Page 15



3. Safeguarding Adult Reviews 

3.1. During this year 4 Safeguarding Adult Reviews were completed. While each 
SAR has identified specific issues for learning, there are some shared themes 
for learning i.e. the need for:

a) Effective working together arrangements across agencies
b) Coordinated working together on a case with one agency taking the 

lead, including effective communication between all parties
c) Thorough risk assessment and risk management
d) Shared ownership of risk
e) Understanding of the Mental Capacity Act and its application

All four SARs from previous years were completed during 2016/17. The Board 
noted that these have taken some time to complete.  Various processes were 
used to complete the SARs and it is becoming clearer about the way forward to 
ensure timely completion of SARs to improve learning and impact. The Board 
has agreed a series of events during 2017/18 to promote learning from the 
SARs.

4. Highlights form 2016-17 Data 

4.1. The number of safeguarding adult concerns raised almost doubled this year, 
compared to the previous year, 2015/16. 508 of the 1261 concerns were 
progressed as Section 42 enquiries1. This increase in Section 42 enquiries 
relates to a consistent application of safeguarding guidance.
The biggest category of abuse remains neglect and acts of omission, followed 
closely by financial and material abuse, then by physical abuse. 
Neglect and omission was the largest category of abuse in people’s own home, 
while physical abuse was the highest category in hosptals and care homes. 
Financial and material abuse was the main category in other settings.

4.2. Asian/Asian British is under represented in safeguarding where cases 
progressed to Section 42 enquiries. As per the Office of National Statistics 
Asian/Asian British Population makes up 11% of the population of Hackney and 
have had 5% of cases taken forward to Section 42 Enquiries. In relation to all 
other ethnic groups, Section 42 enquiries have been in line or above the average 
as per the population profile of Hackney residents. 

People of Islamic faith are under represented i.e. whereas 14% of the population 
of Hackney are people of this faith, only 5% of people involved in the Section 42 
enquiries were people of Islamic faith.  Taking into account that Asian/Asian 
British have low representation (as stated earlier), it is worth noting that there 

1 A section 42 enquiry is undertaken according to Chapter 14 of the Care and Support Statutory Guidance 
(Department of Health, updated February 2016), sometimes referred to as ‘a formal safeguarding enquiry’. 
‘section 42’ or a ‘s.42’.

Page 16



were very low level of Section 42 enquiries involving people of Sikh, Buddhist 
and Hindu faith.

4.3. The data showed that 1 person was subject to 4 Section 42 enquiries, 13 were 
subject to 3 such enquiries and 45 people had had 2 Section 42 enquiries during 
2016/17. This data where more than two Section 42 enquiries were pursued 
warrants further investigation to understand the reasons for repeat enquiries in 
order to refine practice and this will be undertaken.

4.4. During 2016/17, 69% of people whose safeguarding concerns were progressed 
as Section 42 safeguarding enquiries were asked and expressed their desired 
outcomes. 92% had their outcomes fully or partially achieved. 

4.5. In 2016/17 there were 804 applications for DoLS, an increase from 682 
applications in 2015/16, and 344 in 2014/15. This continues the pattern of a 
radically increased DoLS workload each year since the Supreme Court’s 
judgment in the “Cheshire West” case in March 2014. By comparison, there were 
only 23 applications for DoLS 2013/14, of which 13 were approved

5. Priorities for 2017/18 

1. We will continue to raise awareness
2. We want to engage with service users to get feedback
3. We aim to make services personal 
4. We will meet our duties to commission safeguarding adult reviews and 

improve services in line with learning gained including through 
commissioning relevant training

5. We evaluate improvements through multi-agency case file audits and self-
audits

6. We will promote advocacy to support people
7. We are aiming to devise a prevention and early intervention protocol
8. We will gather appropriate data to provide reassurance and improve 

service
6. Financial Contributions 

6.1. The partnership funds the Board 

7. Legal Considerations 

7.1. The Care Act establishes three core duties for Safeguarding Boards: The Board 
must:

1) Publish a strategic plan for each financial year that sets out how it will 
meet its main objectives and what the members will do to achieve this. 
The plan needs to be developed with local community involvement and in 
consultation with local Healthwatch organisations.

2) Conduct any Safeguarding Adults Reviews as may be required.

Page 17



3) Publish an annual report detailing what the SAB has done during the year 
to achieve our main objectives and implement its strategic plan.

8. Equality Impact Assessment 

8.1. The Report highlights equality considerations in terms of the ethnicity, age, and 
gender and disability status of people about whom a safeguarding concern has 
been reported to the statutory agencies. 

Page 18



People should be able to live a life free from harm 
in communities that are intolerant of abuse, work 
together to prevent abuse and know what to do 
when it happens

CHSAB  Annual Report  
2016 – 2017

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   1 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 19



black
11 mm clearance 
all sides

white
11 mm clearance 
all sides

CMYK
11 mm clearance 
all sides

TOTAL POLICING

UNIVERS FONT

Working together for a safer London

 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   2 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 20



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2016-2017

Contents
Message from the Independent Chair 1
City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board (CHSAB) 3

Who Are We? 3
Our Principles 4
Governance 4
Our Strategic Links 5
Financial Arrangements 6

Work of the CHSAB 2016/17 8
Subgroups 10
Supporting the CHSAB 12

Safeguarding Data 13
Safeguarding Data - London Borough of Hackney 13
Safeguarding Data – City of London 21

Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) 23
Mrs A & Mr B SAR 23
Mr BC SAR 23
Mr GH SAR 24
Mrs Y SAR 24
Key Cross-cutting Themes from the SARs 25
SAR Learning Events 25

Evidencing Good Practice – Case Studies 26
Homerton University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 26
Metropolitan Police Service – Hackney 27
London Borough of Hackney – Adult Social Care 28
City of London Corporation – Adult Social Care 29
City of London Police 30

Partner Contributions 32
London Borough of Hackney – Adult Social Care 32
City of London – Adult Social Care 33
NHS City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group 34
City of London Police 36

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   3 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 21



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2016-2017

Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) – Hackney 37
Healthwatch Hackney 38
Healthwatch City of London 39
Homerton University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 39
St Barts Health 41
East London Foundation Trust 42
Housing Providers 43
Hackney Council for Voluntary Services 44
City of London - Trading Standards 47
London Borough of Hackney - Trading Standards 47

Plans for 2017/18 48

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   4 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 22



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

1

Annual Report 2016-2017

Message from  
the Independent Chair
 I am very pleased to introduce the Annual Report for the 

City and Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 2016/17. 
As the Independent Chair of the Board, I continue to 
be very grateful to all partners for their contributions to 
the Board, and their ongoing support. The partnership 
has continued to grow and develop, as reflected in this 

annual report. 

We have been looking at the patterns in safeguarding 
activity to inform our priorities for improvement. We have looked 

at cases where people have died and Safeguarding Adults Reviews were 
undertaken to understand what happened. We want to learn from these terrible 
circumstances how we can work together to improve processes, systems 
and practice and therefore the better support and protect people who may 
experience abuse or neglect (see page 23). 

We continue to work on raising awareness of safeguarding in City and 
Hackney’s communities, which is so fundamental to ensuring people can 
protect themselves and seek help and support when needed. We continue 
to address the newer areas of safeguarding activity, included in the Care Act 
2014, for example how we can support children and adults who might be 
victims of modern slavery.

This annual report is important because it shows what the Board aimed to 
achieve during 2016/17 and what we have been able to achieve. It shows that 
we have an ambitious agenda on behalf of the residents of City and Hackney. 
Most of the tasks were completed during the year, which shows how we are 
progressing. The annual report provides a picture of who is safeguarded in 
City and Hackney, in what circumstances and why. This helps us to know 
what we should be focussing on for the future. It includes the Delivery Plan 
for 2017/18, which says what we want to achieve during the next year. In 
particular I am mindful that the joint work on fire safety and vulnerable adults 
started with the learning from Safeguarding Adults Reviews, will be expanded 
in the light of recent horrific events at Grenfell Tower.

I am very mindful of the pressures on partners in terms of resources and 
capacity, so want to thank all partners and those who have engaged in the 
work of the Board, for their considerable time and effort. In this context, we 
understand the absence of a contribution to this annual report from the London 
Fire Brigade, who continue to be committed partners of the Board.

I know that there is a great deal that we need to do and want to do to reduce 
the risks of abuse and neglect in our communities and support people who  

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   1 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 23



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

2

Annual Report 2016-2017

are most vulnerable to these risks. This is a journey that we are all making 
together, and I look forward to chairing the partnership in the next year to 
continue this journey.
Dr Adi Cooper OBE,  
Independent Chair City and  
Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   2 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 24



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

3

Annual Report 2016-2017

City & Hackney Safeguarding 
Adults Board (CHSAB)

Who Are We?
The City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board (CHSAB) is the statutory  
board for the City and Hackney and is a partnership of statutory and  
non-statutory organisations, representing health, care and support providers 
and the people who use those services across the City of London and the 
London Borough of Hackney.

The work of the Board is driven by its vision, that in the City and Hackney:

People should be able to live a life free from harm in communities  
that are intolerant of abuse, work together to prevent abuse and  

know what to do when it happens

The main objective for the Board, to achieve this vision, is to assure itself 
that effective local adult safeguarding arrangements are in place and that all 
partners act to help and protect people with care and support needs in the City 
and Hackney.

The CHSAB has three core duties under the Care Act 2014 that it must fulfil in 
achieving its main objective:

 ● Develop and publish a Strategic Plan setting out how it will meet its objective 
and how its partners will contribute to this;

 ● Publish an Annual Report detailing how effective their work has been; and

 ● Commission Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARS) for any cases that meet 
the criteria for these reviews.

This Annual Report sets out: 

––   How effective the CHSAB has been over the 2016/17 year;

––   What we have accomplished in relation to the Boards Strategic Plan for 
2016/17; 

––   The Boards Strategic plan for 2017/18;

––   Details of the SARS that the board has commissioned; and

How its partners have contributed to the work of the Board to promote effective 
adult safeguarding.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   3 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 25



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

4

Annual Report 2016-2017

Our Principles 
Public consultation, undertaken during 2015/16, agreed that four principles 
should underpin our 5-year strategy. These principles are:

+ All of our learning will be shared
+ We will promote a fair and open culture
+  We will understand the complexity of local  

safeguarding needs
+ The skill base of our staff will be continuously improving

Governance
The CHSAB partnership consists of representation from:

 
Dr Adi Cooper was the independent chair of the Board during 2016-2017.

The full CHSAB partnership meets quarterly, and arranges extra meetings 
when required 

The CHSAB Executive Group supports the work of the CHSAB. This Group 
consists of senior managers from some of the key partner agencies of the 
Board. The Executive Group meets regularly in between the full CHSAB’s 
quarterly sessions and is also chaired by Dr Cooper. It serves as a link 
between the sub groups and the Board to support the CHSAB to run 
effectively.

 ● City of London Corporation 

 ● City and Hackney Clinical 
Commissioning Group

 ● Homerton University 
Hospital NHS  
Foundation Trust

 ● Metropolitan Police Service 
(Hackney)

 ● London Ambulance Service 

 ● Barts Health NHS Trust

 ● Housing Providers 

 ● Hackney Healthwatch 

 ● Hackney CVS

 ●  London Borough of 
Hackney

 ●  East London NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 ●  City & Hackney Older 
People Reference Group  

 ●  London Fire Brigade 

 ●  Care Quality Commission 

 ● National Probation Service 

 ● City of London Healthwatch

 ● City of London Police

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   4 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 26



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

5

Annual Report 2016-2017

The City of London Adult Safeguarding Sub-Committee consists specifically 
of agencies working in the Square Mile. The Sub-Committee provides a clear 
recognition of and focus on safeguarding arrangements in the City, enables 
communication with the full CHSAB and is a means of developing a City-
focused adult safeguarding in line with the CHSAB’s priorities. Dr Cooper who 
is the chair of the CHSAB also chairs this Sub-Committee.

The CHSAB has established a number of multi-agency subgroups to help it 
deliver on its objective and annual priorities. These are considered in more 
detail the ‘2016-2017 - What We Have Done’ section below. 

Our overall structure is illustrated below:

Our Strategic Links 
The CHSAB has links with partnerships and boards also working with 
communities in the City of London and Hackney, including: the City and 
Hackney Children’s Safeguarding Board, Community Safety Partnerships; and 
Health and Wellbeing Boards. We have continued to develop our relationships 
with these local strategic bodies. This enables the Board to help ensure that 
local arrangements are working to support people with care and support needs 
who experience, or are at risk of, abuse and neglect. 

Communication  
& Engagement  

Subgroup

SAR & Case  
Review  

Subgroup

Quality  
Assurance 
Subgroup

Training & 
Development 

Subgroup

CoL Adult 
Safeguarding  

Sub-committee

Executive  
Group

Subgroup  
Chairs

City & Hackney 
Safeguarding  
Adults Board

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   5 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 27



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

6

Annual Report 2016-2017

Financial Arrangements 
This year the CHSAB received total contributions of £164,138 from partners as 
listed below.

 

 

 

 

Income Received from Partners: £
City of London Corporation (25,000)

East London NHS Foundation Trust (25,000)

Homerton University Hospital (12,000)

NHS City and Hackney CCG (11,750)

Metropolitan Police Authority (5,000)

Barts and London NHS Trust (5,000)

City of London Police (3,000)

London Fire Brigade (500)

City of London Corporation (FB) (500)

LB Hackney (76,388)

CHSAB Underspend 2015/16 (103,500)

Total Income: (267,638)

CHSAB Expenditure: £
Staff Related       97,444 

External Training          12,677 

Independent Chair          14,300 

Misc. Expenditure          39,717 

Other Planned                 -   

Total Expenditure 
Net Position

164,138
 (103,500)

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   6 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 28



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

7

Annual Report 2016-2017

Other partners were not able to make financial contributions but they have 
contributed with their time and commitment to the Board’s work and by 
providing access to resources such as meeting venues, conferences, etc.

This year, the budget balanced with outgoings met by contributions. The 
Budget retains a reserve (including an underspend carried over from 2015/16).

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   7 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 29



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

8

Annual Report 2016-2017

Work of the CHSAB 2016/17
The CHSAB held four meetings and a development day during 2016/17. 
The development day focused on ‘scamming’. It convened two additional 
meetings to consider the findings of two Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) 
that had been commissioned in the previous years. It had a workshop to align 
its priorities with Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) and the principles for 
safeguarding within the Care Act 2014, and a reflective session on what it 
achieved during the previous year, to inform its current priorities. 

During this year: 

––   Following the presentation by Detective Inspector Phil Brewer on Modern 
Slavery in the previous year, each partner identified a lead for Modern 
Slavery. A policy was adopted which provided guidance on how to work 
with child and adult victims.

––   Arising from findings from a SAR, the ‘self-neglect policy’ was reviewed 
and improved. Included in this review was the review of the Community 
MARAC, which included recommendations to redefine it as a ‘High 
risk panel’ to avoid confusion with domestic abuse, and to lower the 
threshold for referral, in line with the principle of prevention of abuse and 
neglect. A multi-agency file audit was instigated, which focused on the 
theme of self-neglect, and priorities for improvement identified by SARs.

––   In response to the findings of a SAR, the CHSAB commissioned a report 
and best practice guide for supported housing service providers on 
sexuality, consent and sexual relations when working with older people. 

––   An escalation protocol was produced to provide a process for 
partner agencies to resolve, or escalate for resolution, professional 
disagreements regarding the actions, inactions or decisions of another 
partner agency in exercising its responsibilities.

––   To prevent cases that would be appropriate for consideration under the 
SAR protocol from slipping through the net and improve understanding,  
a referral process was agreed, circulated in all agencies and 
disseminated to staff.

––   The CHSAB funded an assurance tool for grant giving services to ensure 
that the organisations that they fund have suitable adult safeguarding 
policies and procedures, and a toolkit to support voluntary organisations 
to develop safeguarding policies. Safeguarding awareness training  
was made available to the voluntary sector. The Board has recognised 
the need to identify and support safeguarding champions in the  
voluntary sector. 

––   The CHSAB funded training to build staff competence and to increase  
 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   8 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 30



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

9

Annual Report 2016-2017

knowledge in particular areas of practice to prevent recurrence of issues 
identified in the SARs.

––   The collection and presentation of appropriate data on safeguardin 
activity and trends were reviewed and revised to inform the CHSAB 
works.

––   In line with good practice stipulated in the Care Act 2014 and further 
amplified in the Multi Agency Pan London Policy and Procedures, a 
representative of local Housing organisations was .invited to join the 
CHSAB.

––   In response to the absence of representation from the Care and Support 
services on the Board, as identified by this group themselves, members 
of the adult social care Provider Forum elected a representative to join 
the CHSAB.

––   Partners of the CHSAB and the Chair have visited community groups to 
engage with the wider community on safeguarding issues. It has agreed 
a SAR communication strategy and is working on a model for user 
engagement.

Self-Audits 
Partners of the CHSAB completed an audit of their organisations effectiveness 
in keeping people safe. They were candid in their self-appraisal and 
identified some good practice and improvements they needed to make. They 
demonstrated their commitment to the CHSAB and this is key to affecting 
change and improving safeguarding activities in the partner organisations. 
These organisational self-audits were used to inform the priorities for the 
Strategic Plan for 2017/18.

Joint Working 
The Board is supported to have an overarching view of risk across the different 
areas through Adult Social Care attendance at Multiagency Risk Assessment 
Conference (MARAC), Multiagency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA), 
Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) and the Anti-social Behaviour Risk 
Assessment Panel.

The Community MARAC in the City of London has adult social care 
representation and the Head of Safeguarding Adults chairs the multiagency 
High Risk Panel in Hackney.

A representative from Children’s services attends the CHSAB. In 2017-18 
this arrangement will be reciprocal. The Board was made aware of the ‘Think 
Family approach and a briefing has been circulated to be disseminated to all 
staff to enable staff to work holistically.

The Board has been working with the Community Safety Partnership on the 
PREVENT agenda.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   9 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 31



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

10

Annual Report 2016-2017

Continuous Development 
This year the roles and composition of the CHSAB subgroups were 
consolidated to ensure that they continue to support the work of the Board 
and deliver on its annual strategic plan. Each subgroup reviewed its Terms of 
Reference in line with CHSAB’s strategic priorities. The subgroups benefit from 
multi-agency representation, with

Subgroups 
This year the roles and composition of the CHSAB subgroups were 
consolidated to ensure that they continue to support the work of the Board 
and deliver on its annual strategic plan. Each subgroup reviewed its Terms 
of Reference in line with CHSAB’s strategic priorities. The subgroups benefit 
from multi-agency representation, with staff from statutory and non-statutory 
agencies attending and contributing to the work. 

Communication & Engagement 
The Communication & Engagement subgroup was tasked with the 
responsibility to devise a plan to engage with the wider community, community 
groups and users, in order to raise awareness of safeguarding adults 
and communicate their views to the Board. The group is in the process of 
producing a User Engagement Protocol that will identify the best way to ensure 
peoples’ views are heard. 

From reaching into the community and ‘hard to reach’ groups, the sub-group 
has identified that there is a need to further raise awareness and maintain 
safeguarding on the communities’ agenda. It has proposed the training of 
safeguarding champions in local community groups, which is being explored. 
The group also devised a SAR Communication Strategy that has been ratified 
by the Board. It is overseeing the development of a website for the CHSAB.

Quality Assurance
The Quality Assurance subgroup role is to ensure that appropriate and 
timely quantitative data and qualitative information is available to the Board 
to consider and respond to where necessary. The core data includes: 1) The 
location of abuse; 2) groups more susceptible to abuse; 3) types of abuse; 
4) timeliness of interventions by professionals; and 5) users satisfaction with 
interventions (MSP). This enables the Board to be informed of local adult 
safeguarding activity, trends and patterns that the intelligence may highlight, in 
order to effect early intervention or to prevent risk. As a result, during 2016/17, 
the City of London focussed on promoting awareness about financial abuse. 
Further development in data collection and presentation is expected to provide 
a comprehensive dashboard that has all safeguarding activity in Hackney and 
the City of London in one place. Activity captured is based on statutory data 
collection requirements, priority areas of learning from SARs, and includes 
data from partner organisations. The dashboard will be available to relevant 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   10 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 32



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

11

Annual Report 2016-2017

partners to access and will have up to date data at the point of logging in. The 
group was also tasked with creating a mechanism to assess the impact from 
learning from SARs on improving safeguarding practice, which it is developing. 
A multi-agency case file audit has commenced which will track cases through 
the safeguarding processes to assess practice against the themes of Making 
Safeguarding Personal, mental capacity, risk assessment and information 
sharing, focussing on self-neglect.

Training & Development
The Training & Development subgroup is responsible to ensure that 
people who work to safeguard people have the knowledge and expertise 
commensurate with the role they perform. It recognises that each statutory 
partner is guided by its own training requirements in relation to safeguarding 
adults, and that commissioned services are required as part of their contract  
to provide safeguarding training to its staff. It fills the gap to provide training 
that stems from the strategic priorities of the CHSAB, and to improve practice 
in relation to findings from SARs. This year it provided training on the  
following topics:

The group has submitted a request to the Board to develop competency 
standards for training and a training evaluation framework, which are being 
explored. It is also tasked with producing supervision standards regarding 
adult safeguarding. It has agreed to carry out an evaluation of training 
including content, quality, relevance and delivery, using a ‘mystery  
shopper’ process.

Safeguarding Adults: coercion and 
Emotional cbuse

Mental Capacity Assessment 
(MCA)

Safeguarding Adults: domestic 
violence

Deprivation of liberty safeguards 
(DoLS) awareness

Safeguarding Adults: modern slavery MCA/DoLS/Safeguarding Adults 
for Managers

Safeguarding Adults: self neglect and 
hoarding

MCA/DoLS/Safeguarding Adults 
for staff

Safeguarding Adults Leads: non- 
statutory

SAR: Positive risk taking and Risk 
Management

SAM Training SAR Models and Methodology

Safeguarding enquiries

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   11 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 33



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

12

Annual Report 2016-2017

SAR & Case Review 
The SAR & Case Review subgroup is the primary mechanism by which the 
CHSAB exercises its statutory duty to arrange a SAR when someone with 
care and support needs within its locality dies, as a result of abuse or neglect, 
whether known or suspected, and there is a concern that partner agencies 
could have worked more effectively together to protect the person. The 
subgroup is well established and during the course of the year has considered 
a number of SAR referrals and overseen several Reviews. The subgroup 
makes recommendations to the CHSAB Chair on when a statutory Review is 
required and when an alternative approach to identify learning is appropriate. 
The subgroup will monitor and report to the CHSAB on the development and 
implementation of multi-agency action plans that may flow from SARs to ensure 
that the learning from the Reviews has a meaningful and lasting impact on how 
services work with adults with care and support needs. This year it also was 
responsible for creating a protocol so that understanding of referrals for SARs 
was increased amongst frontline staff. 

City of London Adult Safeguarding Committee
In line with the City of London’s Safeguarding Adults strategic plan, work 
has been undertaken by the City of London Financial Abuse Task and Finish 
Group. A Data sharing agreement is being drawn up with key partners 
and stakeholders, including the police, trading standards, housing and 
commissioned advice service. Work has also been done on social isolation, 
which has been reported to the subgroup.

City of London is represented on all SAB sub groups, with the Assistant 
Director chairing the SAR sub group of the Board. A new performance digest 
including key safeguarding performance indicators will be fully reportable in 
2017-2018, due to the recent appointment of a performance strategist.

Supporting the CHSAB
The CHSAB Business Support Team comprising of a full-time Board  
Manager and a full-time Business Support Officer has supported the work  
of the Board, ensuring that the business of the Board is managed in a timely 
and efficient manner.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   12 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 34



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

13

Annual Report 2016-2017

Safeguarding Data
The safeguarding data for the year 2016-2017 is presented separately for the 
two authorities. City of London and Hackney submit annual statutory returns on 
safeguarding activity, known as the Safeguarding Adults Collection, and this is 
included in the data below.

Safeguarding Data -  
London Borough of Hackney 

The number of safeguarding adult concerns raised almost doubled this year, 
compared to the previous year, 2015/16. 508 of the 1261 concerns were 
progressed as S42 enquiries. This increase in Section 42 enquiries relates to a 
consistent application of safeguarding guidance

The data shows that most of the abuse happened in people’s own homes. 
That most abuse happens in people’s homes is in line with what is happening 
generally in similar authorities, as demonstrated by the comparator. (This 
comparator is a measure used by NHS Digital to report analysis data from 
–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 
1A s42 enquiry is undertaken according to Chapter 14 of the Care and Support Statutory Guidance (Department of 
Health, updated February 2016), sometimes referred to as ‘a formal safeguarding enquiry’. ‘section 42’ or a ‘s.42’.

1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200

0
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Concerns Accepted S42 enquiries

Total number of Safeguarding concerns and  
Section 42 (S42) enquiries 2014 to 2017

2014/15 2016/172015/16

100%

50.0%

0.0%
Own Home Care home Other

S42 Enquiries by type of abuse 2014 to 2017

Community Service Hospital

672

55.5%
76.7%

13.3% 5.2% 25.2%
4.4% 14.7% 4.3%

6.8% 6.1% 9.4%

76.8%

224

661

257

1261

508

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   13 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 35



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

14

Annual Report 2016-2017

the Safeguarding Adults Collection. Comparator groups are a selection of 15 
councils considered to be similar to the chosen council. They are selected 
according to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Nearest Neighbour Model, which identifies similarities between 
councils based on a range of socio-economic indicators). But abuse in the  
 
person’s own home was 23% higher in Hackney than the other boroughs in 
the comparator in 2015/16. Whereas it looks like there has been a drop to less 
than 50% for enquiries in hospitals in 2016/17, the actual reduction in cases is 
2. The levels of abuse in care homes is low due to the fact that there are a very 
small number of care homes in Hackney.

 
Organisational  
1%

Neglect & Omission  
27%

23% 
Financial & Material  

18% 
Physical 

Sexual Exploitation 
1%

Self-Neglect  
6%

Sexual Abuse  
4%

Domestic Abuse  
8%

Discriminatory  
1%

12% 
Psychological 

S42 by types of abuse

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   14 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 36



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

15

Annual Report 2016-2017

The biggest category of abuse remains neglect and acts of omission, this 
compares with other comparator authorities in 2015/16. This category is 
followed closely by financial and material abuse, then by physical abuse. 
Physical abuse rather than financial and material abuse was the second largest 
category in other comparator authorities. 

Proportion of types of abuse in own home 2016/17

Sexual Abuse

Self-Neglect

Domestic Abuse

Psychological

Physical

Financial and Material

Neglect and Omission

0%

4%

7%

9%

11%

16%

24%

29%

5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Proportion of types of abuse in care homes 2016/17

Sexual Abuse

Self-Neglect

Organisational

Psychological

Financial and Material

Neglect and Omission

Physical

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

3%

6%

6%

9%

15%

27%

33%

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   15 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 37



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

16

Annual Report 2016-2017

Neglect and omission was the largest category of abuse in people’s own 
home, while physical abuse was the highest category in hospitals and care 
homes. Financial and material abuse was the main category in other settings.

Proportion of types of abuse in hospitals 2016/17

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45%

Organisational

Discriminatory

Sexual Abuse

Psychological

Neglect and Omission

Physical 41%

21%

21%

10%

3%

3%

Proportion of types of abuse in other locations 2016/17

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Sexual Exploitation

Sexual Abuse

Self-Neglect

Physical

Domestic Abuse

Neglect and Omission

Psychological

Financial and Material 33%

20%

13%

9%

7%

7%

7%

4%

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   16 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 38



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

17

Annual Report 2016-2017

 

The table above shows the ethnicity of people who were subject to S42 
enquiries. Asian/Asian British is under represented in safeguarding where 
cases progressed to S42 enquiries. As per the Office of National Statistics 
Asian/Asian British Population makes up 11% of the population of Hackney and 
have had 5% of cases taken forward to S42 Enquiries. In relation to all other 
ethnic groups, S42 enquiries have been in line or above the average as per the 
population profile of Hackney residents.

White

Black/
African/
Caribbean/ 
Black 
British

Asian/
Asian 
British

Other 
Ethnic 
Group 

Undeclared/ 
Not known

Mixed/  
Multiple

Source of Risk in 
Own Home 56% 28% 6% 4% 4% 1%

Hackney Population 
(ONS 2015) 55% 23% 11% 5% 6%

All S42 enquiries source of risk own home by  
ethnicity 2016/17

250
200
150
100
50
0

White Black/African/
Caribbean/ 

Black British

Asian/ 
Asian British

Other Ethnic 
Group

Undeclared/ 
Not known

Mixed/  
Multiple

100

216

20
13 13 4

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   17 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 39



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

18

Annual Report 2016-2017

Christian Not started Jewish Other 
Religion No Religion Islam

Source of Risk in 
Own Home 42% 28% 9% 7% 6% 5%

Hackney Population 
(ONS 2015) 39% 10% 6% 1% 28% 14%

The tables above shows the religion, where available, of people who were 
involved in S42 enquiries. People of Islamic faith are under represented i.e. 
whereas 14% of the population of Hackney are people of this faith, only 5% of 
people involved in the S42 enquiries were people of Islamic faith. Taking into 
account that Asian/Asian British have low representation (as stated earlier), it is 
worth noting that there were very low level of S42 enquiries involving people of 
Sikh, Buddhist and Hindu faith.

Repeated S42 Enquiries
The data showed that 1 person was subject to 4 Section 42 enquiries, 13 were 
subject to 3 such enquiries and 45 people had had 2 Section 42 enquiries 
during 2016/17. This data where more than two Section 42 enquiries were 
pursued warrants further investigation to understand the reasons for repeat 
enquiries in order to refine practice and this will be undertaken.
 
Making Safeguarding Personal
During 2016/17, 62% of people were asked about their desired outcomes and 
their outcomes were expressed where ‘other safeguarding enquiries’ were 
progressed. 91% of those who were asked had their outcomes achieved or 
partially achieved .

180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

Chri
sti

an
Not 

Stat
ed

Je
wish

Othe
r R

eli
gio

n
No R

eli
gio

n

Isl
am

Ras
taf

ari
an

Je
ho

va
h W

itn
es

s
Refu

se
d

Sikh
Bud

dh
ist

Hind
u

All S42 enquiries source of risk own home by  
religion 2016/17

153

104

32 24 22 20
3 2 2 2 1 1

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   18 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 40



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

19

Annual Report 2016-2017

Making safeguarding personal outcomes for  
other safeguarding enquiries

Desired outcomes of other enquries where outcomes  
were asked and achieved

Not Achieved 9%

Partially Achieved  
43%

Fully Achieved  
48%

Not recorded 8%

Don't know 13%

No 10%

Yes they were  
asked but no 
outcomes were 
expressed 7%

Yes they were  
asked and 
outcomes were 
expressed  
62%

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   19 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 41



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

20

Annual Report 2016-2017

During 2016/17, 69% of people whose safeguarding concerns were 
progressed as S42 safeguarding enquiries were asked and expressed their 
desired outcomes. 92% had their outcomes fully or partially achieved.

Desired outcomes of concluded S42 enquiries where  
outcomes were asked and achieved

Partially Achieved  
35%

Not Achieved 8%

Fully Achieved  
48%

Making Safeguarding personal outcomes for concluded  
S42 Safeguarding enquiries

Not recorded 8%

Don't know 7%

No 8%

Yes they were  
asked but no 
outcomes were 
expressed 8%

Yes they were  
asked and 
outcomes were 
expressed  
69%

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   20 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 42



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

21

Annual Report 2016-2017

Other Key Improvements
Referrers informed us that we were not getting back to them to tell them  
what happened to the referrals they made. Due to additions to our data 
recording systems we are able to report on this item. The data shows that  
we have got back to 80% of referrers. This issue is being auditted as part of  
the multi-agency file audit and we will be able to report more fully in the Annual 
Report for 2017/18

It had been highlighted that in Hackney there was a low usage of advocacy. 
In an audit of 20 cases where a person lacked capacity and was subject 
to safeguarding procedures, in 80% of cases the person had appropriate 
representation. Work is being carried out to improve the forms to prompt and 
ensure clarity for practitioners to report appropriately on advocacy.

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS)
In 2016/17 there were 804 applications for DoLS, an increase from 682 
applications in 2015/16, and 344 in 2014/15. This continues the pattern of 
a radically increased DoLS workload each year since the Supreme Court’s 
judgment in the “Cheshire West” case in March 2014. By comparison, there 
were only 23 applications for DoLS 2013/14, of which 13 were approved.

However, given the significantly broader awareness of the Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards amongst providers, including hospitals and residential 
homes, this is likely to be a plateau for the borough and creates the opportunity 
to devise a permanent approach to responding to the applications, whilst also 
increasing the number of applications made to the Court of Protection where 
a deprivation of liberty is occurring for somebody in a community setting, i.e. 
supported living, sheltered accommodation, shared lives, etc.

Safeguarding Data – City of London
The number of safeguarding concerns received from April 2016 to March 
2017 was 29: 25 were within the City of London and 4 were outside the City. 
There has been a slight decrease in alerts raised this year: in comparison there 
were 34 alerts raised in 2015-2016, with 3 alerts regarding residents placed 
outside the City. Of the 25 City of London concerns, 13 were progressed to a 
S42 enquiry. The other concerns were diverted from the formal safeguarding 
process but support and care was provided in all cases. The highest category 
of risk was neglect and omission, followed by physical abuse and closely 
followed by financial abuse. 1 person was subject to domestic abuse. All 
people subject to the safeguarding process had their desired outcomes met.

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS)
The requests for authorisations for the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards in 
the City of London has continually increased following the ‘Cheshire West’ 
judgement in 2014. However, it appears that they have begun to plateau. The  

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   21 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 43



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

22

Annual Report 2016-2017

demand for DoLS is unpredictable as there can be an increase in the number 
of applications received if people are admitted to hospital. 

There have been two DOLS cases in the Court of Protection this year, which 
illustrate the complexities of the Mental Capacity Act and Mental Health Act 
and the skilled management of rights and risks.

Reporting 
Period

Number 
of DOLS 
Requested

Number of DOLS 
Granted

2013 – 2014 Less than 5 Less than 5

2014 – 2015 13 12

2015 – 2016 34 29

2016 – 2017 39 29

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   22 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 44



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

23

Annual Report 2016-2017

Safeguarding Adults Reviews 
(SARs)
The SAR & Case Review subgroup received three case referrals this year. One 
was deemed not to require a SAR, for another, Ms Q, a SAR was instigated 
and the group is waiting on further information on the third. All 4 SARs from the 
previous years were completed during this year and published, not always in 
their entirety, depending on sensitivities or wishes of family (short summaries 
follow below). 2 Independent Practice Reviews from the previous year were 
also completed during 2016/17. 

Mrs A & Mr B SAR
Mrs A and Mr B were residents in a supported housing with care complex. 
There were concerns that Mr B posed a fire risk to the other residents and 
that he allegedly sexually assaulted Mrs A in her flat. The Review has been 
necessarily drawn out, being mindful both of working with the families of those 
involved and that it was running in parallel with other reviews or investigations. 
The CHSAB followed the Social Care Institute for Excellence’s Learning 
Together model for this SAR. An executive summary of the SAR has been 
published and is available on the CHSAB webpage to view (http://www.
hackney.gov.uk/safeguarding-adults-board#sar).

As a result of this SAR, an independent report and guidance were 
commissioned on consent, sexuality and sexual relations when working with 
older people living in supported housing. This guidance was developed 
with relevant staff, and, following training, is now available to all staff.  Risk 
assessment and risk management training has been provided to staff. The 
full range of improvement actions from this SAR are monitored by the SAR 
subgroup and reported to the Board.

Mr BC SAR 
Mr BC was an older person living in a sheltered housing scheme, who died in 
a fire at his home in 2014. He was a heavy smoker who routinely drank large 
amounts of alcohol and was using a number of services at the time of his 
death. This SAR adopted a more traditional approach set out by other SARs 
and Serious Case Reviews, establishing a SAR Panel, with an independent 
Panel Chair and an independent lead reviewer, which commissioned Individual 
Management Reports (IMRs) and further evidence from the agencies involved.

During the course of this Review, the Panel advised the CHSAB Chair that it 
was necessary to seek from the housing provider involved further assurance, 
beyond and complementary to the scope of the SAR, that it had taken sufficient 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   23 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 45



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

24

Annual Report 2016-2017

action to reduce the likelihood of serious injury due to fire to vulnerable 
individuals in their properties. The provider gave this assurance satisfactorily 
before the SAR completed. The SAR report is available on the CHSAB 
webpage to view (http://www.hackney.gov.uk/safeguarding-adults-board#sar). 

Actions taken so far as a consequence of this SAR include:

––   Housing services are represented on the CHSAB, and a representative of 
Care and Support services has been invited to join the Board.

––   The Self-Neglect protocol has been reviewed and a multi-agency 
case file audit based on cases where self-neglect occurred, is being 
conducted 

––   Safeguarding processes have been reviewed in Hackney and new forms 
are being used

––   An escalation policy is in place for all Board partners

––   Shared ownership of risk is facilitated through the High Risk Panel

––   Risk Assessment and risk management training, training on relationship 
based approaches and MCA training has been arranged

––   Fire safety visits are recorded on the LBH dashboard. Since February 
2015, 98 visits were carried out to tenancies in housing where care is 
also provided.

The improvement actions from this SAR are being monitored by the SAR & 
Case Review subgroup and are reported to the Board.

Mr GH SAR 
Mr GH was also an older person living in a sheltered housing scheme. Mr GH 
passed away in 2015 while experiencing a number of health issues and using 
a range of services. This SAR followed the same methodology as is described 
above for Mr BC. The CHSAB funded specific IMR training for the contributing 
agencies and SAR panel members involved, to help ensure that the process 
was well supported to deliver effective evidence-based learning. This is an 
example of how the CHSAB is continually working to evaluate and develop its 
practices. The report of this SAR is available on the CHSAB webpage to view 
(http://www.hackney.gov.uk/safeguarding-adults-board#sar).

The action plan is being compiled and will be reported on in the annual 
report for 2017/18.

Mrs Y SAR 
Mrs Y was 85-years-old at the time of her death. She was known to have 
a history of history of strokes, cognitive impairment and visual impairment. 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   24 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 46



She was living at home with her daughters. There are concerns that neglect 
may have contributed to her death and a number of different agencies had 
concerns about Mrs Y, but there was limited evidence on file of any concerted 
action to establish her needs and assess risk. The report of this SAR has 
been published and is available to view on the CHSAB webpage (http://www.
hackney.gov.uk/safeguarding-adults-board#sar). 

The action plan is being updated and will be reported on in the annual 
report for 2017/18.

Key Cross-cutting Themes from the SARs
While each SAR has identified specific issues for learning, there are some 
shared themes for learning i.e. the need for:

1) Effective working together arrangements across agencies

2) Coordinated working together on a case with one agency taking the lead, 
including effective communication between all parties

3) Thorough risk assessment and risk management

4) Shared ownership of risk

5) Understanding of the Mental Capacity Act and its application

SAR Learning Events
All four SARs from previous years were completed during 2016/17. The Board 
noted that these have taken some time to complete.  Various processes were 
used to complete the SARs and it is becoming clearer about the way forward 
to ensure timely completion of SARs to improve learning and impact.

The Board has agreed a series of events during 2017/18 to promote learning 
from the SARs that include:

––   A conference

––   Workshops 

––   A Leaders’ Symposium

A SAR Communication Plan has been produced to disseminate learning for 
staff and volunteers across services in the City of London and Hackney.

City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

25

Annual Report 2016-2017

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   25 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 47



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

26

Annual Report 2016-2017

Evidencing Good Practice –  
Case Studies

Homerton University Hospital NHS  
Foundation Trust
Case Study: Modern Slavery 
The following case study describes a patient who was subject to  
Modern Slavery.

A patient arrived in A&E at the Homerton. He reported the following that:  

––   He came to the UK by “car”, driving from Poland with “friends” 

––    He was told he would come to work in construction in London for £6-7/hr

––    He was told not to bring his own money

––   He was in fact taken to an industrial area “an hour from London”

––   He discovered that the job he was to be given was to sort recycling for 
£1.50/hour

––    He was told that he had to pay them back for his travel and 
accommodation, and that his wages would be put towards that

––   He was told he would not be paid until the end of the week

––   He did not want to work under such conditions and so left by foot

––    He reported he walked for 3 hours to reach London

––   He went to the Polish embassy, and could not find anyone to speak to

––   He had no money

––    He was sleeping rough, and woke up in hospital

The ward staff contacted the Modern Slavery Helpline and the Salvation Army. 

The person on the Modern Slavery helpline spoke to the patient in his own 
language and reassured him that steps could be taken to support him to return 
to Poland.

The Salvation Army reported they would be able to help. They requested a 
National Referral Mechanism’ form, which was completed by a social worker. 
The patient was picked up from the hospital by the Salvation Army and taken 
to a hostel in Cardiff. The Lead for Adult Safeguarding established, during a 
follow up conversation, that the patient has returned to Poland.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   26 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 48



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

27

Annual Report 2016-2017

Good practice
The ward team, particularly the junior doctor involved, pursued the case until 
a positive outcome was achieved for the patient. They addressed his social 
needs, as well as his health needs, diligently.

Metropolitan Police Service – Hackney
Case Study 1: Domestic Violence
Police were alerted to this situation following a victim disclosure made  
during a safeguarding adults meeting where the victim disclosed physical 
abuse to a professional by her elderly and unwell husband. The victim herself 
was elderly with some disabilities together with early onset of dementia. She 
was dependant on her husband and scared to report him but wanted the 
violence to stop.  

Police and Adult Safeguarding staff worked closely together to implement a 
safeguarding strategy; it included the arrest of the perpetrator. The husband 
was charged with assault and remanded to court where he was convicted of 
assault. He was unwell himself and this impacted on the family and the victim’s 
engagement with police as all sought to have the perpetrator released and for 
him to return to the family home. 

Rehousing was offered but declined. Safeguarding the victim continued 
beyond the conviction with support from an Independent Domestic Violence 
Advocate and a MARAC referral was made. Follow up visits were undertaken. 
Re-housing was offered to the victim. The suspect had a firearms licence to 
hold guns at his address – by revoking a firearm licence it removes firearms 
from the environment and prevents them being used in anger or as part of 
domestic abuse. 

The person’s desired outcomes were met as we worked with her and it wasn’t 
just about a criminal justice outcome. We put her at the centre of the process. 

Case Study 2: Conviction for Carer Abuse
Hackney MPS has a dedicated Vulnerable Adult team with Detectives located 
within our Community Safety Unit who lead on Vulnerable Adult and Carer 
abuse through a multi-agency approach. This is historically an investigation 
area where due to the vulnerability of our victims it is difficult to secure 
evidence to meet the thresholds required for any prosecution. We have 
however through our dedicated officers and our multi-agency engagement 
with partners recently secured a conviction in court for Adult Abuse by a Carer. 
In this case the victim was a 52-year-old lady with Alzheimer’s with no ability 
to communicate pain or concerns whether by speech, sign, writing or other 
method. She had been scalded (21% burns) by willful negligence after being 
placed in a hot bath by her carer. Her family reported the incident to police. 
The carer was arrested and received a six month suspended prison sentence. 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   27 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 49



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

28

Annual Report 2016-2017

London Borough of Hackney – Adult Social Care
Case Study: Hoarding, Think Family & Making Safeguarding 
Personal
An older woman and her adult son, who had never lived apart came to the 
attention of Hackney Adult Social Care (ASC) services following a referral  
from a local Housing Association. The Housing Association raised 
safeguarding concerns about their verbally aggressive relationship that had 
been reported to them by neighbours, in addition to a self-neglect concern for 
the mother in relation to hoarding, as they were in the process of progressing 
eviction proceedings.

This was a complex case, as the family were initially reluctant to accept any 
input from the council despite both telephone calls and letters being sent. 
However, they had a positive relationship with the local Housing Officer, 
despite the threat of eviction. The Housing Officer eventually managed to 
negotiate an agreed time for a joint visit along with a social worker. The visit 
identified that there were significant hoarding issues, which had resulted in 
the couple using a small proportion of their available space. During the visit it 
became very apparent that both mother and son were extremely attached, and 
would often conclude each other’s sentences whilst also shouting at  
each other. It was also clear that the mother had poor mobility and some 
medical concerns that required addressing, e.g. swollen legs. The son was 
becoming increasingly agitated at the thought of people getting involved in 
his and his mother’s life and was not able to accept that the environment was 
becoming a concern. 

Through discussion and several visits, the family outlined their desired 
outcomes, in keeping with the principles of Making Safeguarding Personal, 
which initially centred upon addressing the possibility of eviction, and some 
support to the mother and for professionals to not become too involved in 
their life. In view of this they agreed to a number of actions, which included a 
request that the GP undertake a home visit, a full assessment of the mothers 
needs and a carer’s assessment was completed for the son.

The GP visit a few days later led to the mother being admitted to hospital  
in order to address her serious health deterioration. The son became  
extremely anxious that his mother would not return home, although he 
struggled to accept that she may require space to be made in the home. 
His reaction to this was regarded as concerning as he was not able to 
acknowledge his mother’s needs. 

Hospital staff noted that the mother was becoming increasingly anxious about 
her son’s wellbeing and although she was extremely keen to get back home, 
she was also not able to appreciate that she now had her own care needs 
which could not be met in the current home environment. A mental capacity 
assessment was completed which indicated that she did not have full capacity 
to make a decision about her complex health needs. However, she was very 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   28 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 50



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

29

Annual Report 2016-2017

clear in relation to wishes and feelings about where she wanted to reside, 
which was at home with her son. 

Through negotiation with the mother and son at a number of meetings at  
the hospital, it was agreed that she could go home once her son was able  
to create a micro-environment in one room, whilst also engaging with  
mental health services to address his anxiety and hoarding, in order to  
prevent eviction.

The mother subsequently returned home with a support package and an 
agreement from the son to ensure the space was maintained. He attended a 
number of appointments with mental health services but then dis-engaged. 
ASC continued to maintain contact and in concluding the safeguarding work 
they were able to identify that the families desired outcomes had been met 
for the most part, in that a care package had been provided and the Housing 
Association had suspended any eviction proceedings. However, due to the 
remaining risks, it was not possible to meet their desired outcome of little 
involvement from Social Services, although they were less reluctant than at the 
onset of the safeguarding concern being instigated.

City of London Corporation – Adult Social Care 
Case Study: Working Together
Brenda is a 75 year old woman who lives in her own flat with her son, David, 
and 14 year old grand-daughter, Betty. Her daughter, Sherrie lives locally but 
Brenda has not seen much of her recently due to a disagreement between 
Sherrie and David. Brenda was previously a carer to her elderly husband, Joe, 
who now lives in residential care.  Social care became involved when the care 
for Joe started to break down and the family could no longer care for Joe, 
who has dementia.  The admission had been traumatic for both husband and 
wife who wanted to be together. On Joe’s admission it was discovered that 
the family were in substantial debt due to various speculative loans and that 
tensions remained.

The social worker described the flat as being very cluttered and unhygienic, 
without hot water or working lights.  Every room was full of “rubbish” that David 
said should be kept. The social worker noted that Brenda seemed very anxious 
and timid.

On visiting Brenda while she was on her own Brenda said that whereas she 
used to like being with her family, now she would like them to leave. She felt 
that they placed her under financial pressure because David demanded 
money of her. She felt threatened by him albeit, not at serious risk. She worried 
that the debts would lead to her losing her home. The social worker felt she 
had capacity to make the decision not to refer this to the police and to keep 
herself safe at home until a solution could be found.  .  

There were referrals to adult safeguarding, David was referred for a social work 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   29 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 51



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

30

Annual Report 2016-2017

assessment, and Betty was referred to children’s services. A housing referral 
was made for David as well as benefits advice. Legal referral was made about 
the housing situation and Brenda was advised that she could evict them from 
her home. A letter was written to the son giving a time limit to leave once it was 
clear that a place could be found. They were supported with removal costs to 
ensure that they moved. Lasting power of attorney was applied for by Sherrie, 
the daughter, so that no more money could be given to David. Although there 
did appear to be financial irregularities in the account Brenda and Sherrie did 
not want this to be formally pursued as it would only inflame the situation. 

Making Safeguarding Personal
The social worker worked with Brenda to achieve the outcome that she wanted 
and respected her decision not to report the ‘abuse’ to the police. 

Outcomes 
Brenda was pleased that the family left and, supported by her daughter, she 
enjoyed some months in her own home including regular visits to her husband 
before being moved to the same residential home as her husband when her 
mental state deteriorated.

City of London Police
Case Study: Benefits of Community MARAC 
Mr G was identified by the City of London Police (COLP) as a vulnerable 
55 year old man with mental health issues. He had come to the notice of 
police notice 11 times in the City since May 2016. His behaviour and mental 
health was deteriorating, causing him to become increasingly aggressive 
and unstable. He had threatened to kill officers as well as take his own life. 
Police attended his house following several reports of loud music and anti-
social behaviour which was particularly directed towards his neighbours. 
He kept a screw driver, chisel and hammer by a chair and repeatedly made 
threats towards City of London Police. Numerous ‘adult to notice’ reports were 
submitted to the Public Protection Unit and referred to Adult Social Care as Mr 
G was identified as vulnerable. He previously told a Nurse that he was hearing 
voices to kill a City of London Police officer. Efforts had been made to engage 
with him but he refused support from all services and was not receiving 
treatment. 

The Case was referred to the Community MARAC in December 2016 and a full 
multiagency assessment was undertaken at his premises. 

As a result of multi-agency intervention:

 ● Mr G was assessed by a mental health team and deemed to have capacity. 
He was offered support. 

 ● As a result of the MARAC, a multi-agency plan was put in to place in order 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   30 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 52



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

31

Annual Report 2016-2017

to manage his vulnerabilities whilst protecting the community from anti-
social behaviour related to the presentation of his mental health issues. 

As a result, Mr G was made aware that his behaviour was unacceptable and 
was given the opportunity to engage to change his pattern of behaviour. The 
pattern of calls regarding anti-social behaviour stopped immediately and a 
civil injunction meant that the community tensions caused by Mr G’s anti-social 
behaviour were quelled, and the community was protected.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   31 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 53



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

32

Annual Report 2016-2017

Partner Contributions
In the next section CHSAB partners set out how they have contributed to the 
work of the CHSAB and to the ongoing improvement of local safeguarding 
adults arrangements. 

London Borough of Hackney – Adult Social Care
Hackney Adult Social Care (HASC) is a statutory member of the CHSAB and 
is represented at all relevant sub-groups. This assists in ensuring that HASC 
are actively involved in the majority of aspects of the strategic development of 
adult safeguarding in City and Hackney. 

HASC participated in the completion of the annual Safeguarding Adults 
at Risk Self-Audit and the associated peer challenge event. The self-audit 
provided an opportunity to highlight good practice and identify areas for further 
development. The audit outcome was largely positive in that it identified a 
wide range of systems, policies and protocols that inform and support adult 
safeguarding within Hackney. There was evidence of good inter-agency 
working and consistent engagement with the CHSAB.

The positive examples of the promotion of adult safeguarding included the 
strengthened alignment of a workforce development team which has provided 
an opportunity to work with the CHSAB to create and implement a training 
programme that provides safeguarding related training to all CHSAB partners, 
including Making Safeguarding Personal, general safeguarding awareness, 
etc. This will be further developed upon for 2017/18 and will focus upon the 
findings from the Safeguarding Adults Reviews commissioned by the CHSAB.

Another example of good practice that seeks to promote adult safeguarding 
across the partnership has been the decision to create a distinct Principal 
Social Worker role, and separate this function from the Head of Safeguarding 
Adults, creating more capacity for strategic safeguarding development as well 
as best practice models. 

The role of Principal Social Worker will build upon the quality assurance 
framework that has been implemented by ASC which includes quarterly audits 
of cases against good practice principles. Findings from the most recent 
audit identified that whilst most areas are of a good standard, there are some 
that require more focus to provide assurance that safeguarding practice is 
consistent in capturing the voice and desired outcomes of the adult at risk, 
better recording of risk analysis and how we work with the person to recognise 
and manage risks collaboratively.  

Both of these new posts will be instrumental in progressing a ‘Think Family’ 
approach to the work that we undertake in HASC. 

HASC continue to chair and co-ordinate the Community MARAC (High Risk) 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   32 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 54



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

33

Annual Report 2016-2017

panel which has led to improved outcomes for some Hackney residents whilst 
promoting a multi-agency approach to risk management. This has included the 
use of monies secured from London Fire Brigade to purchase fire prevention 
equipment. This is now being provided to residents who are regarded as being 
at a high risk of fire following Home Fire Safety Checks, i.e. poor mobility, 
smoker, etc.  

Areas where we are seeking to develop practice includes the creation of 
a robust data set, which when combined with data from partners will be 
amalgamated to construct a “live” dashboard that assists in supporting 
the work of the CHSAB and demonstrating achievements, i.e. Making 
Safeguarding Personal outcomes, etc. 

Linked to this is the need to better understand the national benchmarking data 
which suggests that the number of people receiving advocacy services in the 
borough is below the average. As the commissioner for this service, we will 
seek to better understand this data and locally ensure the need for advocacy is 
identified and available in all its forms. 

The Safeguarding Adults Team continues to promote understanding of the 
Care Act 2014, particularly safeguarding domains of domestic harm, sexual 
exploitation and modern day slavery via its continued engagement with 
Community Safety Partnership initiatives, and has seen a steady increase in 
referral figures although these areas of work require further promotion.

City of London – Adult Social Care
Top 3 successes as identified in the self-audit were: 

1.   The development of the multi-agency self-neglect, hoarding and fire risk 
panel.   
The panel has met bi-monthly and continued to engage housing estate 
managers from all estates, environmental health, London Fire Brigade, 
alongside adult social care. Grant money from the Community Fire Safety 
investment fund will be administered through the panel. Learning from 
SAR Fire deaths has been fully disseminated to partners.  

2.   Learning from SARs within the ASC and Commissioning.   
ASC and Commissioning have been briefed as to outcomes of SARs 
particularly where contractual matters around housing with support have 
been highlighted.

3.   Strengthening work within MCA/DOLS and use of advocates in 
safeguarding adults work.   
This has been a key area of strength this year with the use of advocates 
being fully embedded into all safeguarding work and being able to be 
evidenced through the reporting process.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   33 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 55



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

34

Annual Report 2016-2017

Top 2 things to work on:

1.   Working more fully to an enhanced Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) 
approach within the safeguarding process in ASC.

2.   Enhancing public awareness and understanding of MSP through a 
communications campaign aimed at City residents.

As part of the CHSAB QA sub group and work on enhancing performance 
practice standards in the City, MSP outcomes are now fully reportable on in 
line with the CHSAB performance dashboard 

There have been no safeguarding concerns raised through the complaints 
process this year.

Both Children’s and Adults Social Care services have worked on developing 
a ‘Think Family’ approach and the cross cutting themes that arise particularly 
in relation to safeguarding. The City of London Domestic Abuse & Sexual 
Violence Forum has representation from both Adults and Children’s services, 
and the directorate work to the Joint service protocol to meet the needs of 
children where adults or carers have additional needs.

There has been an Adult Safeguarding case that was investigated as a s42 
enquiry and involved domestic abuse in relation to an adult with an additional 
needs, whose son is known to the children’s team because of his physical and 
learning needs. A successful ‘Think Family’ approach was evidenced through 
strategy meetings that involved the Adults and Children’s service as well as 
adhering to MSP principles.

NHS City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning 
Group 
Adult safeguarding performance in 2016/17
The Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) has continued to perform well this 
year with a number of actions completed following an audit by NHS England 
of our safeguarding arrangements in 2015/6, which gave an overall rating of 
“assured as good” with some areas for further development. No areas were 
rated as “unassured”.  The CCG has implemented most recommendations 
from the resulting action plan and will be implementing the outstanding actions 
in 2017/18. 

Our successes for the year include: a working party looking at actions required 
to improve the safety, and care of patients for whom we commission continuing 
care support; agreeing a safeguarding through commissioning policy; and the 
use of a safeguarding dashboard which we have developed and agreed with 
Newham and Tower Hamlets CCGs and is used by all the main NHS providers 
from which we commission acute and mental health care.  

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   34 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 56



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

35

Annual Report 2016-2017

Key actions for 2017/18 are:

 ● Produce a safeguarding strategy for the CCG

 ● Agreeing a supervision policy

 ● Reviewing our adult safeguarding role and recruiting to that revised job role

 ● Work with our GP practices and our GP out of hours provider to support 
them to adopt and deliver best practice safeguarding work. 

Making Safeguarding Personal 
As a commissioner of health services our role is to ensure our providers of 
NHS funded care deliver best practice in terms of their safeguarding duties. In 
2017/18 we will be reviewing providers’ annual safeguarding reports and will 
be asking questions about how they ensure they make safeguarding personal 
in a way that enhances involvement, choice and control as well as improving 
quality of life, wellbeing and safety.     

Safeguarding concerns that have been raised with the CCG through the 
complaints processes. In 2016/17 the CCG did not receive any complaints that 
raised safeguarding issues: we do not provide any services directly to patients 
or carers so we don’t get very many complaints.

How we have supported the implementation of Think Family 
approaches locally

The CCG has been promoting the ‘Think Family’ approach within health 
services, particularly mental health, for many years including:

 ● In 2016/17 the CCG commissioned the Homerton hospital to improve the 
identification of pregnant women and new mothers with emotional and 
mental health needs. It aimed to bring together Homerton Community Mental 
Health Services and Maternity Services (along with ELFT Mental Health 
Services) to improve the local service offer to pregnant women and new 
mothers (and their partners and babies) with low-level emotional wellbeing 
concerns and mild, moderate and severe mental health needs. The scheme 
also ensured a strengthened mental health message in Homerton antenatal 
education for all women and partners and enhanced training for Midwives 
and Obstetricians on perinatal and infant mental health. New mothers and 
partners were also consulted about their experience including those with 
lived experience.

 ● In 2016 we provided training for GPs on safeguarding which included 
elements of ‘Think Family’, concentrating on when adults present with mental 
health issues and the impact on the child. This will be repeated in 2017/18.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   35 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 57



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

36

Annual Report 2016-2017

City of London Police  
The City of London Police (COLP) has continued its’ positive work to promote 
adults safeguarding. This can be demonstrated in a number of ways. 

The development of the COLP Vulnerability Working Group, a monthly meeting 
between representatives of different operational units where different aspects 
of vulnerability and safeguarding are discussed to ensure joined up working 
and capture of activities across the force. The meeting is also driven by HMIC 
and other recommendations. The VAWG reports in to the Vulnerability Steering 
Group for strategic oversight. 

Inclusion of Vulnerability in the Policing Plan 
There is now a specific area in the policing plan around vulnerability which 
utilises the 4P approach. This ensures that vulnerability (including adult 
safeguarding) remains on the radar at strategic level, and demonstrates the 
force commitment in this area. It drives the operational activity below and 
ensures a problem solving approach. Departments are required to report on 
specific areas within this plan. 

Roll out of a Vulnerability Training Package 
This specifically covers mental health, suicide, adults at risk (reporting 
concerns and the Vulnerability Assessment framework). It covers the ideas 
around ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ to ensure officers understand the 
issues of gaining consent from individuals to share information with partners 
and discussing with individuals the outcomes they would like. Additionally the 
training is delivered by an officer who talks of his own struggles with mental 
health and provides a first-hand perspective to staff. This training is in addition 
to mandatory Domestic Abuse training for officers. 

Development of Community MARAC
This has been developed with partners to consider cases of vulnerable 
persons in the community to deal with issues around anti-social behaviour and 
hate crime. It has already had success to put in place multi-agency plans and 
used civil injunctions to protect vulnerable persons in our force area, and take 
a problem solving approach to community issues. This multi-agency approach 
allows COL to consider both Making Safeguarding Personal, and the think 
family approach due to the representation from agencies. 

As per the multi-agency audit, the external COLP website has been updated to 
include an area around Adults at Risk, to signpost individuals where to report 
concerns and link to the Corporation of London site for help and advice. 

Specialist Investigation and Safeguarding 
The Public Protection Unit continue to promote messages around adult 
safeguarding, supporting national awareness weeks on Domestic Abuse, 
honour based violence and Stalking and Harassment.As the main referral unit, 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   36 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 58



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

37

Annual Report 2016-2017

they assess all reports of adult safeguarding concerns and work closely with 
adult and children’s social care, along with other agencies to ensure a joined 
up and multi-faceted approach. Senior managers continue to engage with  
both the adult and children’s Safeguarding Boards with a high level of 
attendance at meetings. 

Economic Crime have begun the task of adopting Operation Signature, a 
National procedure, to ensure that vulnerable victims of fraud are identified 
and safeguarded by the City of London Police. This will be an on-going piece 
of work in to the next year. 

Complaints involving Adult Safeguarding Concerns 
There have been no adult safeguarding concerns that have been raised 
through the complaints process within COLP. The Professional Standards 
Department will raise these directly with PPU if they arise.

Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) – Hackney 
Hackney MPS continue to work hard to ensure that Vulnerable Adults within  
our community are safe and protected with those who offend against them 
being brought to justice. We seek to ensure that our police policies and 
procedures are fit for purpose with escalation mechanisms and officer 
expectations clearly demonstrated. 

Hackney MPS recognises the importance of the Hackney & City Safeguarding 
Adults Board and the strategic work it does. We show our commitment through 
our attendance at the board, sub groups and linked events where we seek to 
work closely and collaboratively with our partners to ensure safeguarding. 

Some notable Adult Safeguarding successes this year for MPS Hackney 
Safeguarding include:

Acquisition of the first Criminal Behaviour Order for Domestic 
Abuse
Hackney police sit on and work closely with MARAC and the VAWG strategic 
& operational groups, both of which are closely aligned to Adult Safeguarding. 
Our Community Safety Unit at Hackney MPS recently secured a Criminal 
Behaviour Order for domestic abuse against a violent DA perpetrator.  The 
order, believed to be the first of its kind to be imposed in England and Wales 
requires the perpetrator to inform police if he is in a relationship for more than 
14 days and it also allows police to inform the woman of his previous violence 
against women under the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme. The victim 
in this case was vulnerable through her immigration status and had been 
subjected to a horrendous ordeal by the perpetrator following a sustained 
campaign of domestic violence. The court heard that he banged his victim’s 
head on the floor and strangled her, inflicting blunt force trauma injuries to 
her head. Following his arrest and while in custody the suspect continued 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   37 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 59



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

38

Annual Report 2016-2017

to intimidate the victim and whilst on bail before his court appearance, he 
assaulted another woman he was in a relationship with. The suspect admitted 
to two counts of actual bodily harm, perverting the course of justice and 
witness intimidation and on 14 February 2017, he was sentenced to 46 months 
in prison. 

Reflection & Improvement
Hackney MPS has been more reflective this year with regards to the role we 
play in adult safeguarding. Through this self-reflection, evaluation and by 
listening to our partners Hackney MPS has identified areas where we can 
change, improve and better understand our role within the adult safeguarding 
arena:  

We recognise the need to embed Making Safeguarding Personal and Think 
Family into the way we work - We need to improve the confidence and 
satisfaction of our service users with their police interactions. We will do this 
through increased targeted and forward planning of attendance by front line 
staff at Multi-agency training and our interactions with service users will be 
monitored through our monthly Borough satisfaction meetings in conjunction 
with customer call backs and reflection. 

Between March 2016 & April 2017 police generated 4349 Adult Come to 
Notice (ACN) Merlins for Vulnerable Adults within our community of which 49% 
(2107) were referred to Adult Safeguarding.  

For the same period, April 2015/6 police raised 3697 ACNs with 1904 (52%) 
being referred to Adult Safeguarding.  This has seen an overall 3% drop in 
police ACN referrals. 

This year we are working closely with our Adult Safeguarding Partners at 
Hackney to ensure that our Adult Come to Notice referrals to Hackney Adult 
Safeguarding meet the thresholds and referral expectations of our partners. 
We will do this through single and joint dip sampling of those referred and 
those not referred together with comparison data against other Boroughs and 
Safeguarding Adults capacity. 

We recognise the need to provide Adult Safeguarding with reassurance that 
our custody procedures ensure that persons who work with vulnerable adults, 
if arrested, are properly referred in accordance with the Notifiable Occupation 
Scheme. We are currently working with our internal Met Detention alongside 
Adult Safeguarding to ensure robust processes and pathways are in place.

Healthwatch Hackney
Local Healthwatch services share a common purpose to ensure the voices of 
people who use services are listened to and responded to. We provide unique 
insight into people’s experiences of health and social care issues across in our 
area of operation; we seek to be the eyes and ears on the ground telling us 
what matters to our local communities.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   38 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 60



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

39

Annual Report 2016-2017

In this context our work with the City and Hackney Safeguarding Adult Board 
is to support its agenda by promoting safeguarding training, act as a ‘critical 
friend’ to the Board, advise on public engagement and report safeguard 
incidents appropriately where we come across them. 

This year we have trained our board, staff and volunteers to identify 
safeguarding incidents and how to report them. In the last year none of the 
complaints we dealt with raised safeguarding issues.

Healthwatch City of London
All Board Members, volunteers and staff have attended safeguarding 
training. Safeguarding is an agenda item at all Board and Team meetings.  
Safeguarding questions have been brought up at external meetings such as 
with the London Ambulance Service.

Staff have participated in the City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 
and its sub-committee on engagement and communication. City of London 
Healthwatch also attends the City of London Adult Safeguarding Sub 
Committee.

There have been no complaints relating to safeguarding or safeguarding 
issues during this period.

Homerton University Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust
Top 3 successes:

 ● Safeguarding Adults Levels 1 and 2 training are mandatory and emphasise 
staff members’ responsibilities in regard to Safeguarding Adults. 

 ● There is a Safeguarding Module on the ‘Datix’ clinical incident reporting 
system. This specifies the nature of the abuse and the desired outcomes of 
the adult at risk. The Homerton Safeguarding Adults Team (HSAT) review 
these forms weekly to check Safeguarding referrals have been sent, if 
appropriate, and give advice to the staff who raised the concern.

 ● The Lead for Adult Safeguarding chairs the MCA/DoLS group, which 
is attended by neuropsychologists, psychiatrists and the LBH Adult 
Safeguarding Lead. This acts as an expert resource for queries arising 
about MCA and DoLS, e.g. arranging for the MCA assessment form to be a 
template on the Electronic Patient Record (EPR), updating the MCA/DoLS 
policy and delivering training.

Top 3 things to work on:

 ● Compliance with completion of Level 2 Safeguarding Adults training needs 
to increase from 74% to 90%.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   39 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 61



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

40

Annual Report 2016-2017

 ● The terms of reference of the Homerton Safeguarding Adults Committee 
need to be reviewed and embedded, to check the appropriate reporting 
structures are in place for safeguarding issues.

 ● The MCA/DoLS policy and procedures need to be updated to reflect the 
current legal position on DoLS and the Trust responsibilities in this regard.

Making Safeguarding Personal 
 ● One of the questions in the Safeguarding Module on the ‘Datix’ clinical 

incident reporting system is, ‘What outcome does the adult at risk want from 
the safeguarding process?’

 ● Safeguarding training Level’s 1 and 2 make reference to Making 
Safeguarding Personal.

Adult safeguarding concerns raised through our complaints 
processes 
The HSAT monitor feedback from complaints in two ways:

 ● A member of the team attends the weekly Complaints, Litigation, Incidents 
and PALS (CLIP) meeting for Integrated Medicine and Rehabilitation 
Services (IMRS), which is the largest directorate in the Homerton. To date, 
none of the complaints discussed in that forum have had a safeguarding 
component.

 ● The HSAT shares an office with the Head of Patient Experience and 
any feedback from patients that may constitute a safeguarding issue is 
discussed informally, to see if further action should be taken. To date, no 
safeguarding referrals have arisen via this route.

Supporting the implementation of Think Family
The HSAT work closely with the Homerton Children’s Safeguarding Team, to 
ensure that the needs of children and families are considered and addressed 
in all safeguarding concerns, as follows:

 ● A joint committee meeting is held quarterly, at which issues related to adults 
and children are discussed.

 ● The lead nurse for adult safeguarding attends the Children’s Team’s 
psychosocial Meeting on a weekly basis, to oversee the transition of any 
children from Children’s to Adult Services.

 ● The HSAT attended a Domestic Abuse Study Day, convened by the 
Children’s Safeguarding Team, on 3.11.16, and uses the information gained 
there to refer families to appropriate services.

 ● The Adult and Children’s Safeguarding Teams are working together on 
a project to highlight FGM on the Homerton’s Electronic Patient Record 
system

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   40 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 62



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

41

Annual Report 2016-2017

St Barts Health
Top 3 areas of good practice

 ● The safeguarding principles set out in the Care Act (2014) have been 
incorporated into the Trust policies, processes and training materials this 
year. One of the most important changes to the work is the emphasis that is 
now placed on the needs and wishes of the person experiencing the abuse 
or neglect. ‘Think family’ has been signposted in the nursing admission 
assessment tool that has been implemented across the Trust this year.

 ● There is clear evidence that people with learning disabilities have greater 
levels of health need, unequal access to health care and poorer health 
outcomes including premature death. The Trust has undertaken a number 
of initiatives to meet Healthcare for All, (DH, 2008). This includes to flag 
all patients known to the local learning disability teams in the 3 boroughs 
(Newham Hospital remains an exception until IT system is merged). 
Reasonably adjusted care pathways in place supported by the use of the 
Hospital Passports and easy read materials. St Barts was part of the national 
pilot of the mortality review and will use early findings from this project to 
influence health care that improves the outcomes for people with learning 
disabilities.

 ● Initiatives undertaken to raise awareness of the Mental Capacity Act and 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, include

a) A programme of face-to-face training which covered all adult in-patient 
and community teams across the Trust, at all levels up to and including 
the Trust Board.  242 training sessions on DoLS and Mental Capacity 
Act were held in the 12 months to August 2016, with almost 2,500 staff 
attending one or more of these.

b) An MCA / DoLS awareness week was held, with stalls, awareness raising 
events and circulation of relevant materials on each Trust site.

c) MCA-DoLS champions were recruited in all in-patient areas and have all 
received additional training.

d) An audit conducted at the beginning and end of the Commissioning for 
Quality and Innovation (CQuIN) period showed that by the end of the 
period (April 2016) there had been an increase of 52% in the number 
of capacity assessments undertaken across the organisation and DoLS 
applications were made for 97% of eligible patients.

e) The administrative systems have continued to be developed to meet the 
increased volume of DoLS applications. These will be reviewed following 
in light the recommendations from the Law Commission consultation

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   41 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 63



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

42

Annual Report 2016-2017

Priorities for the next 12 months
Following a period of change and consultation we will publish our joint adult 
and children safeguarding strategy this year. The strategy will focus on work 
to develop safeguarding leadership, governance and investment in our 
workforce. 

The top 3 priorities will be

1. Agree a training strategy in line with the new intercollegiate document, the 
STP and other partners

 ● To work collaboratively with the others to create multi-agency accessible 
training

 ● To develop a range of training options including inter-professional team 
simulation training events, scenario based interactive learning/e-learning 
and attendance at multi-agency safeguarding strategy meetings and 
conferences.

 ● To align safeguarding adult competency assessment and compliance to 
appraisal and clinical/case supervision

2. To agree a process to strengthen shared learning from incidents

 ● Monitor’s framework for governance reviews (2015) recommend that 
there is a culture of continuous learning so our aim for this year is that 
learning reviews and dissemination are integrated into the governance and 
assurance framework for safeguarding adults

3. To strengthen practice around personalisation and advocacy

 ● We will work more closely with local authorities to ensure that the patient 
focussed outcomes are shared and direct the safeguarding work

 ● We will establish a system to monitor IMCA and other advocacy referrals 
where indicated

East London Foundation Trust
Top 3 Successes:

 ● Improved involvement with the CHSAB Board and sub groups

 ● Last year’s CQC inspection, in which the Trust achieved Outstanding, 
acknowledged that the Trust is good at keeping people safe  

 ● Introduction of online Level 1 and Level 2 Adult Safeguarding 

Top 3 Things to Work on in Coming Year:

 ● Improving the level of Adult Safeguarding training compliance of staff 
throughout the City & Hackney Directorate 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   42 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 64



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

43

Annual Report 2016-2017

 ● Working with the LBH Adult Safeguarding Lead to clarify the threshold  
and improve reporting of Safeguarding concerns, especially from the 
inpatient wards 

 ● To clarify and streamline reporting processes between ELFT and LBH

Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) in our adult safeguarding 
practice
There is work going on across the Trust with the Trust’s Head of People 
Participation (Service User involvement) to ensure that we have systems in 
place that ensure that MSP is a core component for individuals who are subject 
to safeguarding adults process. This includes considering how we might use 
focus groups with service users to get feedback.

Report on how your agency has supported the implementation 
of Think Family approaches locally
We are taking a number of steps to imbed the principles of “Think Family” into 
practice. It is an important element of our on-going staff training. In our local 
C&H level 3 Safeguarding refresher training, one of the sessions is facilitated 
by Tom Richardson, from Hackney CSC Troubled Families team. The title of 
the session is ‘The Whole Family Approach.’ Dr Lenny Fagan is also running a 
session on parental mental health and children. We will also be undertaking a 
local audit looking at practitioners recording of family demographics on RiO.

Housing Providers
Housing providers from Hackney and City of London are represented on the 
CHSAB by Genesis Housing Association. This is a new arrangement that 
commenced during 2016/17. It does this through linking with the London 
Housing and Safeguarding Group, the Hackney Better Housing Partnership 
and City of London Housing Department. 

The role of Housing Providers in safeguarding was formalised by the Care Act 
2014. Since these changes came into force in April 2015. Housing Providers 
operating across Hackney and City of London have been implementing 
changes to strengthen their approach to safeguarding

Key achievements have included:

Training:

• Classroom-based training focussed on ensuring staff gain skills and 
awareness appropriate to their role. For example, Genesis has sessions 
for Operatives, all staff in Look Ahead have received classroom-based 
training on safeguarding adults in the last 2 years 

•  E learning on Adult Safeguarding. For example all staff at Genesis have 
completed this

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   43 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 65



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

44

Annual Report 2016-2017

• Housing providers have engaged with the training provided by the Board 
and found this a useful forum to engage with partners as well as develop 
understanding, skills and awareness. 

Governance:

Housing Associations have developed robust governance structures ensuring 
there is appropriate scrutiny and assurance around safeguarding. Examples 
include:

 ● Genesis has a Safeguarding Committee chaired by the Director of Care and 
Support, a Safeguarding Operational Group and an internal case review 
group to ensure that all learning is embedded and processes are improved 
to avoid cases escalating and a situation arising in which a customer is 
harmed. Regular reports are provided to these groups, managers, the 
Executive and the Board. 

•  Look Ahead have a Safeguarding and Serious Incident Group which is 
led by the Director of Care and Director of Quality & Performance. This 
group provides assurance and ensures compliance; including but not 
limited to commissioning deep dives into serious incidents, reviewing 
KPIs, monitoring data and identifying trends and ensuring an appropriate 
culture is in place to support effective safeguarding. 

Leadership commitment to Safeguarding. Examples include:

•  A Head of Safeguarding post in Genesis to lead the safeguarding 
agenda. 

• Training for the Genesis Board, Executive, Directors and Heads of 
Service. 

•  Southern Housing Group has delivered safeguarding adults training to 
their Directors and Heads of Service. 

This work will continue throughout 2017/18 with Housing Providers continuing 
to strengthen their approach to safeguarding adults. Examples of work to 
be delivered include: Southern Housing Group rolling out a new training 
programme to all staff; and Genesis developing a new safeguarding system to 
support better quality case management. There will also be continuing work to 
establish better links between the Board and Housing Providers, ensuring that 
learning is shared with and embedded within organisations.

Hackney Council for Voluntary Services
Top 10 highlights to Safeguard Adults 2016-2017

1.    Enabled the VCS to directly contribute to the CHSAB strategic  
plan 2017 - 2018

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   44 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 66



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

45

Annual Report 2016-2017

2.    Over 252 members of the VCS accessed  learning opportunities on  
adult safeguarding 

3.    Facilitated a discussion about hidden challenges when making  
referrals with Adult Social Care Team Managers. This led to revising  
the referrals systems 

4.    Assisted user stakeholders to share their views on the style and content 
of the new City and Hackney website  

5.    Participated in the Training and Development Sub Group and Serious 
Adult Review (SAR)Sub groups 

6.    Improved safeguarding awareness amongst LBH grant applicant and 
grant holders supported the grants team to roll out the safeguarding  
tool kit

7.    Proactively supported work to eliminate violence against women and 
girls and FGM at policy level and at community level with a range of 
communities  

8.    Embedded Safeguarding in Hackney CVS and continued to host the 
Training teams safeguarding offer at Hackney CVS 

9.    Delivered a key training session with the Social Care Institute for 
Excellence - Writing a Better Safeguarding Adults policy 

10.  Adopted a new networks based approach  to embed safeguarding in 
key networks such as Hackney Refugee Forum and updated the adult 
safeguarding Health check   

Over the last year Hackney CVS has played an ambassador role in 
safeguarding adults’ key safeguarding messages across the Community and 
Voluntary sector in City and Hackney. The following is a summary of our top 
10 highlights for the year. The adult VCS workforce comprises funded and 
commissioned organisations that provide a range of services to adults aged 
18 years and over in Hackney. Overall many more VCs organisations and 
residents talk about safeguarding and understand its relevance to their service 
users, staff and volunteers. 

The following achievements stand out
 ● Participation in policy and planning of CHSAB  

 ● Our safeguarding focus with organisations that support migrant and refugee 
communities 

 ● Awareness of the safeguarding needs affecting older people. 

 ● Work with LBH Grants Team to meet the Adult Safeguarding Audit and 
compliance requirements  

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   45 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 67



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

46

Annual Report 2016-2017

Participation in Subgroups 
 ● Communication and Engagement Hackney CVS actively contributed to the 

strategic plan and actively encouraged VCS organisations and their service 
users to share their views on the ideal CHSAB website.

 ● Jackie Brett has attended the SAR sub groups and gained an insight to key 
messages for professionals and practitioners within health and social care. 

 ● Kristine Wellington attended the Training and Development Subgroup. The 
learning and development courses have been identified that will boost 
VCS workforce skills. Safeguarding Leads training, Advocacy and in-house 
courses on Mental Capacity Act 2005 

Being on the CHSAB has been very informative for the wider transformation 
work that we are involved in as it highlights the issues that recur. It has been 
good that the Board now has a Housing Association representative on the 
board.

During this period we have engaged Hackney Refugee Forum, a network 
comprising of migrant and refugee organisations in Hackney. The members 
add one hour of safeguarding to their network meeting and address key 
concerns such as; violence and domestic abuse, Mental capacity issues, the 
role of advocates, making referrals, increased awareness of financial abuse 
and promotion of the CHSSB Adult workforce training. We have also engaged 
with more organisations that raise concerns about the threshold requirement 
and needs of older people, particularly VCS organisations that do not speak 
English as their first language or groups that have less understanding of their 
safeguarding rights and hesitate to blow the whistle. 

Hackney CVS has worked closely with the CHSAB to support the VCS to 
understand and meet its safeguarding compliance requirement. In particular 
to ensure the sector has a working knowledge of the principles outlined in the 
Care Act 2014. Particularly frontline organisations working with refugee and 
migrant communities, faith, tenants groups, and family support organisations.

This year we worked closely with the Council officers to ensure that grant 
holders met the safeguarding requirements outlined by the Place for Everyone 
Grants Team. In addition we have supported organisations in how to meet key 
public sector stakeholders that work on safeguarding. 

Conclusion 
We look forward to the development of a website that can be accessible to the 
people of Hackney as well as professionals. I would like to acknowledge key 
community stakeholders. Safeguarding leads from the VCS, Health Watch City 
and Hackney, One Hackney, Connect Hackney, Hive / POhWER, User Led 
training team and the Health and Social Care Forum members.

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   46 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 68



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

47

Annual Report 2016-2017

City of London - Trading Standards
The City of London Trading Standards Service receives around 2000 
complaints and enquiries from consumers living in the City and across the UK 
every year. These relate to problems with businesses primarily linked to the 
Square Mile that may have treated consumers unfairly, supplied unsafe goods, 
failed to provide services using reasonable care and skill or simply defrauded 
them of money.  There is a particular emphasis on investment fraud within the 
City and Trading Standards are a key partner of Operation Broadway. This 
is a multi-agency project that has been operational since 2014 and partners 
include the City of London Police, Metropolitan Police, the Financial Conduct 
Authority, Action Fraud and HMRC. The Trading Standards team speak to 
many victims of investment fraud and make safeguarding referrals to Adults 
Services where vulnerability is an issue. The team also offer to talk to local 
resident groups with a view to target hardening and preventing financial abuse 
in the future.

London Borough of Hackney - Trading Standards 
Hackney Trading Standards treat doorstep crime and scams as a service 
priority. We refer any victim of financial abuse to Adult Care Services. We will 
liaise with the Adult Safeguarding Section together with other agencies such 
as The Police, Age Concern and London Fire Brigade to put together action 
plans and to carry out joint visits. Hackney Trading Standards cannot prevent 
every resident from becoming a victim of doorstep crime or scams but we are 
working towards the elimination of repeat victimisation.

In the first quarter of 2017 we carried our two direct interventions as a result of 
live doorstep crime reports that resulted in saving the two residents in question 
a combined total of £22,000.Both residents were extremely vulnerable with one 
suffering from dementia and the other suffering from mobility problems and 
anxiety. We subsequently identified evidence of further cross border offending 
and associated money laundering. The case is still under investigation but 
the residents have had substantial support and target hardening from Trained 
Officers and referrals have been made to safeguarding in order to get them the 
support they require. 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   47 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 69



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

48

Annual Report 2016-2017

Plans for 2017/18
We will build on what we did in 2016-2017, under the 4 agreed aims of  
the CHSAB strategy:

Our aim is to raise awareness of adult safeguarding and together learn from 
experience

––    We want to be in a place where we have identified the gaps where 
safeguarding adults needs should be promoted and raise awareness of 
safeguarding adults in the community

––   We want to engage with people who use safeguarding services and 
include their feedback into our plans

––   We want to promote safeguarding either through a conference or themed 
week/month so that we reach the widest audience

––   We will ascertain whether staff and volunteers have learnt from the SARs, 
that actions from the SARs are delivered, and the impact of learning is 
evaluated

––   We will continue to evaluate everyday practice through multi-agency 
audit of individual cases 

Our aim is to promote an open culture

––   We want to ensure that people who need advocacy during safeguarding 
activity receive it

––  We want to be proactive in preventing risks to socially isolated residents

––   We will keep abreast of the impact of resource reductions and service 
redesign in the public sector on vulnerable adults in respect of adult 
safeguarding i.e. Local authorities, Police, CCG etc.

––   Members of the CHSAB regularly will demonstrate that they hold each 
other to account

Our aim is to improve the competency of all those involved in safeguarding 
activity

––   We will continue to work to embed the Making Safeguarding Personal 
approach to safeguarding adults in practice across the partnership

––   Common principles for supervision of safeguarding adults practice will 
be agreed and adopted across the partnership

––   We want the CHSAB to have a set of shared resources/tools to use in 
training and briefings that supports consistency in the approach to and 
practice of adult safeguarding

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   48 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 70



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

49

Annual Report 2016-2017

––   We will continue to learn about new themes/emerging concerns/ issues 
in adult safeguarding in order to be effective as a CHSAB partnership 
(including cross cutting issues with the City and Hackney Safeguarding 
Children’s Board and local Community Partnerships)

Our aim is to understand how effective adult safeguarding is across the 
communities we work with

––   We will agree a set of safeguarding data,  in order to inform and improve 
services

––   We will establish an agreed format for presenting this data which is 
understandable to all agencies and is regularly reported/ presented to 
the CHSAB

––   We want to improve communication between those involved in 
safeguarding adults and improve the appropriateness and proportionality 
of referrals (concerns)

––   The data set, which will include data from partners will be a ‘live’ 
dashboard that assists in supporting the work of the CHSAB and 
demonstrating achievements i.e. Making Safeguarding Personal 
outcomes etc.

––   We will benchmark safeguarding data against similar boroughs
(For Full Information of our plan for 2017-2018 – Please see Appendix A

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   49 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 71



50

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   50 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 72



Appendix A: 
CHSAB Annual Strategic Plan 2017-2018 

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   51 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 73



52

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   52 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 74



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

53

Annual Report 2016-2017

Th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

Pl
an

 a
dd

re
ss

es
 th

e 
Si

x 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 o
f A

du
lt 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

: E
m

po
w

er
m

en
t, 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n,
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n,
 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
, P

ro
po

rti
on

al
ity

 a
nd

 A
cc

ou
nt

ab
ilit

y.

Pa
rt

ne
r

Le
ad

Lo
nd

on
 F

ire
 B

rig
ad

e 
H

ac
kn

ey
 (L

FB
H

)
St

ep
he

n 
D

ud
en

ey
 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
do

n 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
(C

oL
)

C
hr

is
 P

el
ha

m

H
om

er
to

n 
H

os
pi

ta
l (

H
U

H
FT

)
Le

sl
ey

 R
og

er
s

C
ity

 &
 H

ac
kn

ey
 C

C
G

 (C
H

C
C

G
)

Je
nn

y 
Si

ng
le

to
n

H
ac

kn
ey

 C
VS

 (H
C

VS
)

Kr
is

tin
e 

W
el

lin
gt

on

H
ac

kn
ey

 M
et

. P
ol

ic
e 

(H
M

PS
)

C
at

he
rin

e 
Ed

gi
ng

to
n

C
ity

 o
f L

on
do

n 
Po

lic
e 

(C
oL

P)
Al

ex
an

de
r H

ay
m

an

Ba
rts

 H
ea

lth
 N

H
S 

Tr
us

t (
BH

H
N

ST
)

Ja
ne

 C
al

la
gh

an

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ac

kn
ey

 (L
BH

)
Si

m
on

 G
al

cz
yn

sk
i 

Pa
rt

ne
r

Le
ad

Lo
nd

on
 F

ire
 B

rig
ad

e 
C

ity
 o

f L
on

do
n 

(L
FB

C
oL

)
Jo

n 
Si

m
ps

on

Lo
nd

on
 A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
(L

AS
)

tb
c

Ea
st

 L
on

do
n 

N
H

S 
Tr

us
t (

EL
FT

)
D

ea
n 

H
en

de
rs

on

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 (P
H

)
N

ic
ol

e 
Kl

yn
m

an

H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 C
ity

 o
f L

on
do

n 
(H

W
C

oL
)

Ly
nn

 S
tro

th
er

H
ea

lth
w

at
ch

 H
ac

kn
ey

 (H
W

H
)

Jo
n 

W
illi

am
s

N
at

io
na

l P
ro

ba
tio

na
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

 (N
PS

)
St

ua
rt 

W
eb

be
r

C
ar

e 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (C

Q
C

)
Pa

ul
a 

Ea
to

n

C
ity

 &
 H

ac
kn

ey
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
Bo

ar
d 

(C
H

SC
B)

Ro
ry

 M
cC

ul
lu

m

Su
b-

gr
ou

p
C

ha
ir

Q
ua

lit
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e
D

ea
n 

H
en

de
rs

on

SA
R 

& 
C

as
e 

Re
vi

ew
C

hr
is

 P
el

ha
m

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Si
m

on
 R

ic
ha

rd
so

n

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

& 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t 
Kr

is
tin

e 
W

el
lin

gt
on

Su
b-

C
om

m
itt

ee
C

ha
ir

C
ity

 o
f L

on
do

n
D

r A
di

 C
oo

pe
r

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   53 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 75



Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
1:

 W
e 

w
ill

 ra
is

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 a
nd

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ill

 le
ar

n 
fr

om
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e

Pr
io

rit
y

Ac
tio

n
Le

ad
 In

di
vi

du
al

, 
su

b-
gr

ou
p 

ch
ai

r, 
or

 
ag

en
ci

es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

1.
  A

w
ar

en
es

s 
R

ai
si

ng
  

 En
su

re
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 is

 ra
is

ed
 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

in
 C

ity
 a

nd
 H

ac
kn

ey
, 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 to

 re
ac

h 
‘h

ar
d 

to
 h

ea
r’ 

/ ‘
ha

rd
 to

 re
ac

h’
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
re

po
rt 

on
 w

he
re

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

ga
ps

 in
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 
1s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

fro
m

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 
da

ta
, b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
re

fe
rra

l d
at

a 
/ 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

, i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

ta
rg

et
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ra

is
in

g.

1.
2 

Id
en

tif
y 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

(e
.g

. t
hr

ou
gh

 A
dv

oc
ac

y 
an

d 
H

os
pi

ta
l P

at
ie

nt
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
) 

an
d 

co
-p

ro
du

ce
/d

ev
el

op
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

fo
rm

s 
of

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

1.
3 

C
ol

la
te

 a
 S

A 
Le

ad
 to

ol
ki

t /
 

re
so

ur
ce

 li
st

 / 
tra

in
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r V

C
S.

1.
4 

Fo
st

er
 c

ap
ac

ity
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 e
xt

en
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

to
 C

H
SA

B 
on

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

1.
5 

C
on

si
de

r a
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 o
f a

 
“s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

w
ee

k 
/ m

on
th

” w
ith

 a
 

se
rie

s 
of

 e
ve

nt
s 

/ a
w

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s,

 w
ith

 C
H

SA
B 

pa
rtn

er
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

in
g 

w
ha

t t
he

y 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 o
ffe

r

Q
A 

su
b 

gr
ou

p
    C

 &
 E

 s
ub

gr
ou

p
    C

&E
 S

ub
gr

ou
p

 SG
/H

AS
C

    Ta
sk

 &
 F

in
is

h 
G

ro
up

 
to

 b
e 

co
nv

en
ed

C
le

ar
 a

nd
 h

el
pf

ul
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ch

an
ne

ls
 s

o 
th

at
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 is

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ac

ro
ss

 
al

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 H

ac
kn

ey
 a

nd
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 o

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

VC
S 

gr
ou

ps
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
, s

up
po

rt 
pe

op
le

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t r

is
ks

 o
f a

bu
se

 o
r n

eg
le

ct
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
ho

w
 s

at
is

fie
d 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 w

ith
 

th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
in

 
or

de
r t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es

VC
S 

gr
ou

ps
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
, s

up
po

rt 
pe

op
le

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t r

is
ks

 o
f a

bu
se

 o
r n

eg
le

ct
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
ho

w
 s

at
is

fie
d 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 w

ith
 

th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
in

 
or

de
r t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es

C
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
ke

y 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

W
or

ki
ng

 T
og

et
he

r A
du

lt 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

20
17

 (C
ar

rie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fro
m

 
pr

ev
io

us
 p

la
n)

 o
r, 

al
te

rn
at

iv
el

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 th
em

ed
 w

ee
k 

/ m
on

th
 w

ith
 

ag
re

ed
 m

es
sa

ge
s,

 th
em

es
, v

en
ue

s,
 e

tc
.

Th
at

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

is
 a

bl
e 

to
 p

op
ul

at
e 

a 
w

ee
k 

/ m
on

th
 o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 s
ee

ks
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

in
pu

t f
ro

m
 a

ll 
pa

rtn
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 F

or
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
to

 m
on

ito
r i

nc
re

as
es

 in

D
ec

 2
01

7

D
ec

 2
01

7

Ja
n 

20
18

Fe
b 

20
18

Fe
b 

20
18

City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

54

Annual Report 2016-2017

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   54 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 76



Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
1:

 W
e 

w
ill

 ra
is

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 a
nd

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ill

 le
ar

n 
fr

om
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e

Pr
io

rit
y

Ac
tio

n
Le

ad
 In

di
vi

du
al

, 
su

b-
gr

ou
p 

ch
ai

r, 
or

 
ag

en
ci

es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

1.
  A

w
ar

en
es

s 
R

ai
si

ng
  

 En
su

re
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 is

 ra
is

ed
 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

in
 C

ity
 a

nd
 H

ac
kn

ey
, 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 to

 re
ac

h 
‘h

ar
d 

to
 h

ea
r’ 

/ ‘
ha

rd
 to

 re
ac

h’
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
re

po
rt 

on
 w

he
re

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

ga
ps

 in
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 
1s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

fro
m

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 
da

ta
, b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
re

fe
rra

l d
at

a 
/ 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

, i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

ta
rg

et
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ra

is
in

g.

1.
2 

Id
en

tif
y 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

(e
.g

. t
hr

ou
gh

 A
dv

oc
ac

y 
an

d 
H

os
pi

ta
l P

at
ie

nt
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
) 

an
d 

co
-p

ro
du

ce
/d

ev
el

op
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

fo
rm

s 
of

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

1.
3 

C
ol

la
te

 a
 S

A 
Le

ad
 to

ol
ki

t /
 

re
so

ur
ce

 li
st

 / 
tra

in
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r V

C
S.

1.
4 

Fo
st

er
 c

ap
ac

ity
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 e
xt

en
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

to
 C

H
SA

B 
on

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

1.
5 

C
on

si
de

r a
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 o
f a

 
“s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

w
ee

k 
/ m

on
th

” w
ith

 a
 

se
rie

s 
of

 e
ve

nt
s 

/ a
w

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s,

 w
ith

 C
H

SA
B 

pa
rtn

er
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

in
g 

w
ha

t t
he

y 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 o
ffe

r

Q
A 

su
b 

gr
ou

p
    C

 &
 E

 s
ub

gr
ou

p
    C

&E
 S

ub
gr

ou
p

 SG
/H

AS
C

    Ta
sk

 &
 F

in
is

h 
G

ro
up

 
to

 b
e 

co
nv

en
ed

C
le

ar
 a

nd
 h

el
pf

ul
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ch

an
ne

ls
 s

o 
th

at
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 is

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ac

ro
ss

 
al

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 H

ac
kn

ey
 a

nd
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 o

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

VC
S 

gr
ou

ps
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
, s

up
po

rt 
pe

op
le

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t r

is
ks

 o
f a

bu
se

 o
r n

eg
le

ct
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
ho

w
 s

at
is

fie
d 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 w

ith
 

th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
in

 
or

de
r t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es

VC
S 

gr
ou

ps
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
, s

up
po

rt 
pe

op
le

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t r

is
ks

 o
f a

bu
se

 o
r n

eg
le

ct
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
ho

w
 s

at
is

fie
d 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 w

ith
 

th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
in

 
or

de
r t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es

C
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
ke

y 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

W
or

ki
ng

 T
og

et
he

r A
du

lt 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

20
17

 (C
ar

rie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fro
m

 
pr

ev
io

us
 p

la
n)

 o
r, 

al
te

rn
at

iv
el

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 th
em

ed
 w

ee
k 

/ m
on

th
 w

ith
 

ag
re

ed
 m

es
sa

ge
s,

 th
em

es
, v

en
ue

s,
 e

tc
.

Th
at

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

is
 a

bl
e 

to
 p

op
ul

at
e 

a 
w

ee
k 

/ m
on

th
 o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 s
ee

ks
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

in
pu

t f
ro

m
 a

ll 
pa

rtn
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 F

or
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
to

 m
on

ito
r i

nc
re

as
es

 in

D
ec

 2
01

7

D
ec

 2
01

7

Ja
n 

20
18

Fe
b 

20
18

Fe
b 

20
18

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
tim

ef
ra

m
e.

 sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
be

in
g 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
in

 
fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ea
s.

2.
  S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
r f

ee
db

ac
k

 D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

m
od

el
 fo

r o
ng

oi
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 
us

er
 a

nd
 c

ar
er

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 
on

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

to
, a

nd
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B
(in

cl
ud

es
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
r 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 

in
fo

rm
s 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B)

 

2.
1 

Se
t u

p 
a 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
or

 in
pu

t i
nt

o 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
(‘e

xp
er

ts
 b

y 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e’

), 
no

m
in

at
ed

 b
y 

M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 

C
H

SA
B,

 to
 re

gu
la

rly
 p

ro
vi

de
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

to
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B

2.
2 

C
on

si
de

r h
ow

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

r 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 
in

to
 th

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
, 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

to
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
if 

fe
as

ib
le

/
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

 (e
.g

. u
se

 s
ur

ve
y 

m
on

ke
y 

fo
r c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s)
, a

nd
 

re
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B

2.
3 

Pr
od

uc
e 

an
 o

pt
io

ns
 p

ap
er

 o
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fo
r t

he
 C

H
SA

B 
w

hi
ch

 o
ut

lin
es

 th
e 

pr
os

 &
 c

on
s 

of
 

ea
ch

 o
pt

io
n,

 w
hi

ls
t c

ap
tu

rin
g 

an
 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f a

ll 
cu

rre
nt

 fo
ru

m
s.

Ad
ul

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
le

ad
s 

in
 H

AS
C

 &
 C

oL
 

     Q
A 

su
b 

gr
ou

p
      Jo

hn
 B

in
di

ng
 / 

C
hr

is
 P

el
ha

m
 / 

C
yn

th
ia

 D
av

ie
s 

(L
BH

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g)

C
H

AB
 is

 in
fo

rm
ed

 a
bo

ut
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
r 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

    Pe
op

le
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
in

flu
en

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r c
o-

pr
od

uc
tio

n
   Th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
ha

s 
a 

cl
ea

r s
tra

te
gy

 fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 th
e 

us
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 

ga
th

er
ed

 a
nd

 is
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 it
s 

w
or

k 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
.

Ja
n 

20
18

       Ja
n 

20
18

      Ja
n 

20
18

3.
  S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

A
du

lt 
R

ev
ie

w
s 

(S
A

R
s)

  
 SA

R 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 th

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
ss

em
in

at
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

m
on

ito
rs

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f l
ea

rn
in

g,
 w

ith
 a

 
vi

ew
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

is
 b

ei
ng

 
an

 in
te

gr
al

 “b
us

in
es

s 
as

 
us

ua
l” 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
m

on
gs

t 
pa

rtn
er

s.

3.
1 

Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

le
ss

on
s 

fro
m

 S
AR

s 
is

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
(in

cl
ud

es
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

to
 s

ta
ff,

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

on
 le

ss
on

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
SA

Rs
 b

ite
si

ze
 

le
ar

ni
ng

, b
es

po
ke

 e
ve

nt
s,

 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
, t

ar
ge

te
d 

tra
in

in
g)

 

3.
2 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 h
el

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 b
y 

th
e 

SA
R 

& 
C

R 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f 

th
e 

C
H

SA
B

SA
R 

& 
C

R 
L 

& 
D

 
C

 &
 E

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
s 

 
     SA

R 
& 

C
R 

su
bg

ro
up

St
af

f a
nd

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

kn
ow

 th
e 

le
ss

on
s 

fro
m

 
th

e 
SA

Rs
  

 Ac
tio

ns
 a

ris
in

g 
fro

m
 S

AR
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

  
 Im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 le

ar
ni

ng
 th

e 
le

ss
on

s 
fro

m
 

SA
Rs

 in
 u

nd
er

st
oo

d 
(th

ro
ug

h 
an

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

fra
m

ew
or

k)

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 ri
sk

s 
ar

e 
m

iti
ga

te
d 

be
ca

us
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fr
om

 S
AR

s 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
re

 
ad

dr
es

se
d

D
ec

 2
01

7 
 M

ar
ch

 
20

18
 

 D
ec

 2
01

7 
  M

ar
ch

 1
8

City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

55

Annual Report 2016-2017

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   55 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 77



Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
1:

 W
e 

w
ill

 ra
is

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 a
nd

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ill

 le
ar

n 
fr

om
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e

Pr
io

rit
y

Ac
tio

n
Le

ad
 In

di
vi

du
al

, 
su

b-
gr

ou
p 

ch
ai

r, 
or

 
ag

en
ci

es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

   4.
  M

ul
ti 

- A
ge

nc
y 

C
as

e 
Fi

le
 A

ud
it 

(M
A

C
FA

) 
 Pr

om
ot

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 

ev
er

yd
ay

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 re

vi
ew

 o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

as
es

3.
3.

 D
ev

el
op

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f l

ea
rn

in
g 

fro
m

 S
AR

s 
on

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e

4.
1.

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 te
st

 a
 m

od
el

 o
f M

ul
ti-

Ag
en

cy
 C

as
e 

Fi
le

 a
ud

it 

4.
2 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

M
AC

FA
 a

ud
it 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 a

nd
 id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t, 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

re
 e

le
m

en
ts

 –
 M

SP
; p

lu
s 

is
su

es
 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
– 

e.
g.

 le
ss

on
s 

fro
m

 S
AR

s,
 a

nd
 fo

cu
s 

on
 k

ey
 th

em
es

 
e.

g.
 s

el
f-n

eg
le

ct
) 

 

SA
R 

& 
C

R 
su

bg
ro

up
    C

H
SA

B 
C

ha
ir 

& 
Ta

sk
 

& 
Fi

ni
sh

 g
ro

up

As
 a

bo
ve

 
  Th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
is

 a
ss

ur
ed

 th
at

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
is

 
im

pr
ov

in
g,

 p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
he

lp
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
th

at
 p

re
ve

nt
s 

ha
rm

, 
le

ss
on

s 
fro

m
 S

AR
s 

ar
e 

ha
vi

ng
 a

n 
im

pa
ct

, 
an

d 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r f

ur
th

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
re

 
id

en
tifi

ed

   C
om

pl
et

ed
 

an
d 

on
go

in
g

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
nd

 Im
pa

ct

City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

56

Annual Report 2016-2017

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   56 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 78



Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
2:

 “
W

e 
w

ill
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

a 
fa

ir 
an

d 
op

en
 c

ul
tu

re
”

Pr
io

rit
y

Ac
tio

n
Le

ad
 In

di
vi

du
al

, 
su

b-
gr

ou
p 

ch
ai

r, 
or

 
ag

en
ci

es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

5.
  A

dv
oc

ac
y 

 
 En

su
re

 th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 is
 s

up
po

rte
d 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
w

ho
 n

ee
d 

it 

5.
1 

An
al

ys
e 

cu
rre

nt
 lo

w
 ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 a
dv

oc
ac

y 
in

 H
ac

kn
ey

, b
as

ed
 

up
on

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 d

at
a,

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

e 
na

rra
tiv

e 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 if
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

.

5.
2 

Im
pr

ov
e 

re
co

rd
in

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 u

se
 o

f a
dv

oc
at

es
 in

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ca

se
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 u
se

 o
f a

dv
oc

at
es

 to
 fr

on
t 

lin
e 

st
af

f a
cr

os
s 

re
le

va
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

as
 

(in
cl

ud
e 

in
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
gs

)

5.
3 

H
AS

C
 e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 
ad

vo
ca

cy
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 

to
 m

ee
t d

em
an

d 
(L

BH
) a

nd
 re

po
rt 

to
 

C
H

SA
B 

on
 u

se
 o

f a
dv

oc
ac

y 

5.
4 

C
on

ne
ct

 th
e 

‘in
fo

rm
al

’ a
nd

 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 a
dv

oc
at

es
 w

ith
 fr

on
t l

in
e 

st
af

f i
n 

st
at

ut
or

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

si
gn

 p
os

tin
g 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n

Q
A 

Su
b-

gr
ou

p 
   H

AS
C

T 
& 

D
 S

ub
gr

ou
p 

     H
AS

C
 

   C
 &

 E
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

Th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

is
 a

bl
e 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 
ad

vo
ca

cy
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 

pr
om

ot
ed

 to
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

se
d 

by
 H

ac
kn

ey
 / 

C
ity

 o
f L

on
do

n 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
 In

cr
ea

se
d 

us
e 

of
 a

dv
oc

at
es

 (H
ac

kn
ey

) 
90

%
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 w

ho
 la

ck
 c

ap
ac

ity
 

ha
ve

 a
n 

IM
C

A 
 

    To
 s

ee
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

H
ac

kn
ey

 / 
C

ity
 

of
 L

on
do

n 
re

si
de

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
C

ar
e 

Ac
t 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 in
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ca
se

s 
 Pr

of
es

si
on

al
s 

an
d 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 c
ha

m
pi

on
s 

in
 th

e 
C

VS
 k

no
w

 h
ow

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 w
ho

 n
ee

d 
th

em

N
ov

 2
01

7 
           N

ov
 2

01
7 

   Co
m

pl
et

ed

6.
  P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
an

d 
Ea

rly
 

In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

 
 D

ev
el

op
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 fo
r 

so
ci

al
ly

 is
ol

at
ed

 re
si

de
nt

s

6.
1.

 D
ev

el
op

 a
 lo

ca
l “

Ea
rly

 H
el

p”
 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 a
nd

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 
su

pp
or

t s
oc

ia
lly

 is
ol

at
ed

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ho

 la
ck

 s
up

po
rt 

an
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

at
 ri

sk
 

of
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

co
nc

er
ns

, e
.g

. ‘
si

le
nt

 
pa

tie
nt

s’
 in

 B
ar

ts
, a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

ig
n 

po
st

in
g 

to
 fi

nd
 s

up
po

rt

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

G
ro

up
  

  Ba
rts

 le
ad

C
ity

 s
ub

-g
ro

up

So
ci

al
ly

 is
ol

at
ed

 re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

vi
a 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
nd

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
se

lf-
es

te
em

 s
o 

th
at

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 ri

sk
s 

ar
e 

pr
ev

en
te

d.
  

M
ar

ch
 

20
17

 

City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

57

Annual Report 2016-2017

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   57 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 79



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

58

Annual Report 2016-2017

Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
2:

 “
W

e 
w

ill
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

a 
fa

ir 
an

d 
op

en
 c

ul
tu

re
”

Pr
io

rit
y

Ac
tio

n
Le

ad
 In

di
vi

du
al

, 
su

b-
gr

ou
p 

ch
ai

r, 
or

 
ag

en
ci

es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

6.
2 

C
on

si
de

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 “s
af

er
 

pl
ac

es
 s

ch
em

e”
 w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 in

fo
rm

 “t
ru

st
ed

 p
ar

tn
er

s”
 o

f 
co

nc
er

ns
 in

 a
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

ar
e 

he
lp

ed
 to

 m
ak

e 
co

nt
ac

t w
ith

 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 fo
r s

up
po

rt.

6.
3 

Id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 is
su

es
 

fo
r t

ho
se

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 d
on

’t 
ha

ve
 

s.
42

 e
nq

ui
rie

s 
to

 s
ee

 h
ow

 th
ei

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 ri

sk
s 

an
d 

ne
ed

s 
ca

n 
be

 
pr

ev
en

te
d

 

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

G
ro

up
 (J

B)
  

   C
&E

 s
ub

 g
ro

up

Ag
en

ci
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 s

oc
ia

l a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 
th

ei
r r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
ha

t t
he

ir 
su

pp
or

t “
of

fe
r”

 is
 a

nd
 w

ha
t 

ab
ilit

y 
th

er
e 

is
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

so
ci

al
ly

 is
ol

at
ed

 
re

si
de

nt
s.

C
H

SA
B 

pa
rtn

er
s 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 s
ig

np
os

tin
g 

op
tio

ns
.

7.
  I

m
pa

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
e 

 
 U

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
-d

es
ig

n 
 

in
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

on
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ad

ul
ts

 
in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
, i

e 
Lo

ca
l 

Au
th

or
iti

es
, P

ol
ic

e,
 C

C
G

, 
et

c.

7.
1.

 P
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

w
ith

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t p

la
ns

, r
is

ks
 

an
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 im

pa
ct

 w
ill 

be
 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
an

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 p

ut
 in

 
pl

ac
e.

 T
he

se
 w

ou
ld

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
e 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
-d

es
ig

n 
in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r 
on

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ad
ul

ts
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f 
ad

ul
t s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g.

 C
on

si
de

r u
pd

at
in

g 
as

 re
qu

ire
d,

 w
ith

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 fr
om

 
C

H
SA

B 
pa

rtn
er

s 
to

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

re
as

 o
f 

co
nc

er
n.

 

H
AS

C
 / 

C
oL

/C
C

G
/ 

Po
lic

e
As

su
ra

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
th

at
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

of
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ris
ks

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

re
du

ce
s 

an
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

ct
iv

ity

O
ng

oi
ng

8.
  C

H
SA

B
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

H
SA

B 
re

gu
la

rly
 h

ol
d 

ea
ch

 o
th

er
 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 
pr

og
re

ss

 

8.
1S

ha
re

 a
nn

ua
l s

el
f-a

ud
its

 o
f 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

(to
 

re
vi

ew
 a

t a
n 

Aw
ay

da
y)

8.
2 

Re
gu

la
r A

ge
nc

y 
up

da
te

s 
to

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

  

C
H

SA
B 

ca
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

An
nu

al
 R

ep
or

t 
 Po

or
 q

ua
lit

y 
is

su
es

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t e

sc
al

at
io

n 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
 

 

Ap
ril

 2
01

8
  Ap

ril
 2

01
8

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   58 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 80



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

59

Annual Report 2016-2017
 

 ad
ul

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
is

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 

in
 c

on
tra

ct
in

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t; 
qu

al
ity

 is
 m

an
ag

ed
 to

 
pr

ev
en

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ris

ks
; a

nd
 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

r c
on

ce
rn

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

ad
dr

es
se

d.

 co
nc

er
ns

 a
nd

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
re

 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

by
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
in

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
nd

 Im
pa

ct

Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
2:

 “
W

e 
w

ill
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

a 
fa

ir 
an

d 
op

en
 c

ul
tu

re
”

Pr
io

rit
y

Ac
tio

n
Le

ad
 In

di
vi

du
al

, 
su

b-
gr

ou
p 

ch
ai

r, 
or

 
ag

en
ci

es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

6.
2 

C
on

si
de

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 “s
af

er
 

pl
ac

es
 s

ch
em

e”
 w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 in

fo
rm

 “t
ru

st
ed

 p
ar

tn
er

s”
 o

f 
co

nc
er

ns
 in

 a
 s

af
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

ar
e 

he
lp

ed
 to

 m
ak

e 
co

nt
ac

t w
ith

 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 fo
r s

up
po

rt.

6.
3 

Id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 is
su

es
 

fo
r t

ho
se

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 d
on

’t 
ha

ve
 

s.
42

 e
nq

ui
rie

s 
to

 s
ee

 h
ow

 th
ei

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 ri

sk
s 

an
d 

ne
ed

s 
ca

n 
be

 
pr

ev
en

te
d

 

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

G
ro

up
 (J

B)
  

   C
&E

 s
ub

 g
ro

up

Ag
en

ci
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 s

oc
ia

l a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 
th

ei
r r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
ha

t t
he

ir 
su

pp
or

t “
of

fe
r”

 is
 a

nd
 w

ha
t 

ab
ilit

y 
th

er
e 

is
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

so
ci

al
ly

 is
ol

at
ed

 
re

si
de

nt
s.

C
H

SA
B 

pa
rtn

er
s 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 s
ig

np
os

tin
g 

op
tio

ns
.

7.
  I

m
pa

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
e 

 
 U

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
-d

es
ig

n 
 

in
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r 

on
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ad

ul
ts

 
in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
, i

e 
Lo

ca
l 

Au
th

or
iti

es
, P

ol
ic

e,
 C

C
G

, 
et

c.

7.
1.

 P
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

w
ith

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t p

la
ns

, r
is

ks
 

an
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 im

pa
ct

 w
ill 

be
 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
an

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 p

ut
 in

 
pl

ac
e.

 T
he

se
 w

ou
ld

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
e 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
-d

es
ig

n 
in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r 
on

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ad
ul

ts
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f 
ad

ul
t s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g.

 C
on

si
de

r u
pd

at
in

g 
as

 re
qu

ire
d,

 w
ith

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 fr
om

 
C

H
SA

B 
pa

rtn
er

s 
to

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

re
as

 o
f 

co
nc

er
n.

 

H
AS

C
 / 

C
oL

/C
C

G
/ 

Po
lic

e
As

su
ra

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
th

at
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

of
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ris
ks

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

re
du

ce
s 

an
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

ct
iv

ity

O
ng

oi
ng

8.
  C

H
SA

B
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

H
SA

B 
re

gu
la

rly
 h

ol
d 

ea
ch

 o
th

er
 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 
pr

og
re

ss

 

8.
1S

ha
re

 a
nn

ua
l s

el
f-a

ud
its

 o
f 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

(to
 

re
vi

ew
 a

t a
n 

Aw
ay

da
y)

8.
2 

Re
gu

la
r A

ge
nc

y 
up

da
te

s 
to

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

  

C
H

SA
B 

ca
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

An
nu

al
 R

ep
or

t 
 Po

or
 q

ua
lit

y 
is

su
es

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t e

sc
al

at
io

n 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
 

 

Ap
ril

 2
01

8
  Ap

ril
 2

01
8

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   59 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 81



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

60

Annual Report 2016-2017

Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
3:

 “
W

e 
w

an
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

m
pe

te
nc

y 
of

 a
ll 

th
os

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

”
Pr

io
rit

y
Ac

tio
n

Le
ad

 In
di

vi
du

al
, 

su
b-

gr
ou

p 
ch

ai
r, 

or
 

ag
en

ci
es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

9.
  M

ak
in

g 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

Pe
rs

on
al

 (M
SP

)  
 En

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

M
SP

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
is

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

9.
1 

Ea
ch

 p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
as

su
re

s 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
of

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
it 

is
 

ta
ki

ng
 to

 a
do

pt
 th

e 
M

SP
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

up
da

te
s 

to
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B.
 

9.
2.

 G
ap

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 M
SP

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
ne

ed
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
– 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
ed

 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 a
re

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 fo

r e
ac

h 
se

ct
or

 o
n 

w
ha

t M
SP

 m
ea

ns
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
(C

ar
e 

Pr
ov

id
er

s,
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
VC

S,
 H

ea
lth

, L
A,

 P
ol

ic
e 

 e
tc

) e
.g

. 
pr

ac
tic

e 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 re
ru

n 
by

 R
ip

fa
 to

 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

nt
 li

ne
 s

ta
ff 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

ei
r 

pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t M
SP

9.
3 

As
se

ss
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 k
ey

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 fo

rm
s 

an
d 

lin
ke

d 
da

ta
 

ca
pt

ur
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

is
 is

 fi
t f

or
 p

ur
po

se
 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 is

 re
gu

la
rly

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B.

9.
4 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 le
ad

s 
an

d 
ch

am
pi

on
s 

in
 th

e 
C

VS
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

an
 

M
SP

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
M

SP
 is

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 

in
 th

ei
r p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

 

Al
l

     T&
D

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
  

         AS
C

 
    Q

A 
Su

b-
gr

ou
p

C
&E

 s
ub

-g
ro

up

M
ak

in
g 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 P
er

so
na

l i
s 

em
be

dd
ed

 in
 fr

on
t l

in
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
pa

rtn
er

s:
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
pe

rs
on

 le
d 

an
d 

ou
tc

om
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

be
ca

us
e 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 s

up
po

rte
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

th
ei

r o
w

n 
de

ci
si

on
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

ir 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng

70
%

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 e
xp

re
ss

 th
ei

r d
es

ire
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 fr
om

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
(in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
C

H
SA

B 
D

as
hb

oa
rd

)  
       To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
SA

 fo
rm

s 
/ 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 re
qu

ire
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 M
SP

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
ou

tc
om

es
. 

  C
VS

 c
on

si
st

en
tly

 p
ro

m
ot

es
 p

er
so

n 
ce

nt
re

d 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

e 
fo

cu
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 in

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

10
.  

Su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

 
 G

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 

of
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 o

f  
 

10
.1

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (B
ou

rn
em

ou
th

 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

) t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

pr
op

os
al

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 th

e 
BU

 
co

m
pe

te
nc

y 
st

an
da

rd
s)

St
af

f a
re

 s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ad
ul

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

w
hi

ch
 e

nh
an

ce
s 

th
ei

r c
on

fid
en

ce
 a

nd
 

co
m

pe
te

nc
e 

in
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 ri

sk
 a

nd

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   60 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 82



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

61

Annual Report 2016-2017
  sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

 
ar

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 a
do

pt
ed

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

br
ie

fin
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 c
om

pl
ex

/
tra

um
at

ic
 c

as
es

)

  10
.2

N
ew

ly
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 H
ac

kn
ey

 
Pr

in
ci

pa
l S

oc
ia

l W
or

ke
r t

o 
lia

is
e 

w
ith

 P
SW

 n
et

w
or

k 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
if 

th
is

 
pr

op
os

al
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 in

 
ot

he
r p

la
ce

s

  H
 P

SW

 de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g

Le
ar

n 
fro

m
 o

th
er

 a
re

as
 a

pp
lie

d 
in

 C
ity

 a
nd

 
H

ac
kn

ey

11
.  

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
 

 C
H

SA
B 

ha
s 

a 
se

t o
f s

ha
re

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

/ t
oo

ls
 to

 u
se

 
in

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 b
rie

fin
gs

 
th

at
 s

up
po

rts
 c

on
si

st
en

cy
 

in
 th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
of

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
.

11
. 1

.C
ol

la
te

 a
nd

 d
is

se
m

in
at

e 
sh

ar
ed

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

et
c 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 s

im
ul

at
io

n 
ex

er
ci

se
s;

 Y
ou

Tu
be

 v
id

eo
s;

 ta
bl

e 
to

p 
ex

er
ci

se
s 

(M
D

S)

11
.2

 Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

sh
ar

e 
/ p

ro
m

ot
e 

go
od

 p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 e

.g
. o

n 
M

en
ta

l 
C

ap
ac

ity
 A

ct
 (M

C
A)

 

T 
& 

D
 s

ub
-G

ro
up

C
&E

 S
ub

-g
ro

up
  

  T 
& 

D
 S

ub
-g

ro
up

St
af

f a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 h

av
e 

a 
sh

ar
ed

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

an
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

is
 v

ar
ie

d 
in

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r d

iff
er

en
t a

ud
ie

nc
es

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff 
gr

ou
ps

C
H

SA
B 

pa
rtn

er
s 

ar
e 

fa
m

ilia
r w

ith
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

pr
om

ot
ed

 v
ia

 th
e 

M
C

A 
Fo

ru
m

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
M

C
A 

C
om

pe
te

nc
ie

s.
 

 
12

.  
C

H
SA

B
 L

ea
rn

in
g

Im
pr

ov
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 n
ew

 th
em

es
/ e

m
er

gi
ng

 
co

nc
er

ns
/ i

ss
ue

s 
in

 
ad

ul
t s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

in
 

or
de

r t
o 

be
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

as
 

a 
C

H
SA

B 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

cr
os

s 
cu

tti
ng

 
is

su
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 
H

ac
kn

ey
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Bo
ar

d 
an

d 
lo

ca
l C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s

12
.1

 C
H

SA
B 

se
ek

s 
to

 k
ee

p 
its

el
f 

aw
ar

e 
of

 k
ey

 s
ub

je
ct

 a
re

as
 v

ia
 o

th
er

 
ge

ne
ra

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
id

en
tifi

es
 a

re
as

 
w

he
re

 it
 c

ou
ld

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
th

e 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e,

 v
ia

 b
rie

fin
gs

 a
nd

 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

C
H

SA
B 

on
:

La
w

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 R
ev

ie
w

; 
C

hi
ld

 S
ex

ua
l E

xp
lo

ita
tio

n
C

ou
nt

y 
Li

ne
s

M
od

er
n 

D
ay

 S
la

ve
ry

 (w
ith

 a
nn

ua
l 

re
vi

ew
 o

f C
H

SA
B 

pr
ot

oc
ol

)
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s/

 R
ou

gh
 S

le
ep

er
s

Se
x 

W
or

ki
ng

D
om

es
tic

 V
io

le
nc

e
Fi

na
nc

ia
l a

bu
se

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 s

ca
m

m
in

g

AL
L 

     AS
 L

ea
ds

C
&F

 le
ad

s
Po

lic
e

C
hr

is
 P

el
ha

m

In
cr

ea
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 C

H
SA

B 
M

em
be

rs
 

on
 n

ew
 th

em
es

/ e
m

er
gi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
s/

 is
su

es
 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 s

ha
re

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 p
la

nn
in

g

In
cr

ea
se

d 
re

fe
rra

ls
 li

nk
ed

 to
 s

ub
je

ct
 a

re
as

.

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
nd

 Im
pa

ct

Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
3:

 “
W

e 
w

an
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

m
pe

te
nc

y 
of

 a
ll 

th
os

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

”
Pr

io
rit

y
Ac

tio
n

Le
ad

 In
di

vi
du

al
, 

su
b-

gr
ou

p 
ch

ai
r, 

or
 

ag
en

ci
es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

9.
  M

ak
in

g 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

Pe
rs

on
al

 (M
SP

)  
 En

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

M
SP

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
is

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

9.
1 

Ea
ch

 p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
as

su
re

s 
th

e 
C

H
SA

B 
of

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
it 

is
 

ta
ki

ng
 to

 a
do

pt
 th

e 
M

SP
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

up
da

te
s 

to
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B.
 

9.
2.

 G
ap

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 M
SP

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
ne

ed
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
– 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
ed

 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 a
re

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 fo

r e
ac

h 
se

ct
or

 o
n 

w
ha

t M
SP

 m
ea

ns
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
(C

ar
e 

Pr
ov

id
er

s,
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
VC

S,
 H

ea
lth

, L
A,

 P
ol

ic
e 

 e
tc

) e
.g

. 
pr

ac
tic

e 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 re
ru

n 
by

 R
ip

fa
 to

 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

nt
 li

ne
 s

ta
ff 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

ei
r 

pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t M
SP

9.
3 

As
se

ss
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 k
ey

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 fo

rm
s 

an
d 

lin
ke

d 
da

ta
 

ca
pt

ur
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

is
 is

 fi
t f

or
 p

ur
po

se
 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 is

 re
gu

la
rly

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
C

H
SA

B.

9.
4 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 le
ad

s 
an

d 
ch

am
pi

on
s 

in
 th

e 
C

VS
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

an
 

M
SP

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
M

SP
 is

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 

in
 th

ei
r p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

 

Al
l

     T&
D

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
  

         AS
C

 
    Q

A 
Su

b-
gr

ou
p

C
&E

 s
ub

-g
ro

up

M
ak

in
g 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 P
er

so
na

l i
s 

em
be

dd
ed

 in
 fr

on
t l

in
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
pa

rtn
er

s:
 a

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
pe

rs
on

 le
d 

an
d 

ou
tc

om
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

be
ca

us
e 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 s

up
po

rte
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

th
ei

r o
w

n 
de

ci
si

on
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

ir 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng

70
%

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 e
xp

re
ss

 th
ei

r d
es

ire
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 fr
om

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
(in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
C

H
SA

B 
D

as
hb

oa
rd

)  
       To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
SA

 fo
rm

s 
/ 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 re
qu

ire
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 M
SP

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
ou

tc
om

es
. 

  C
VS

 c
on

si
st

en
tly

 p
ro

m
ot

es
 p

er
so

n 
ce

nt
re

d 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

e 
fo

cu
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 in

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

10
.  

Su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

 
 G

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 

of
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 o

f  
 

10
.1

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (B
ou

rn
em

ou
th

 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

) t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

pr
op

os
al

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 th

e 
BU

 
co

m
pe

te
nc

y 
st

an
da

rd
s)

St
af

f a
re

 s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

ad
ul

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

w
hi

ch
 e

nh
an

ce
s 

th
ei

r c
on

fid
en

ce
 a

nd
 

co
m

pe
te

nc
e 

in
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 ri

sk
 a

nd

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   61 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 83



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 

62

Annual Report 2016-2017

Pr
in

ci
pl

e 
4:

 “
W

e 
w

ill
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
ho

w
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ad
ul

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
is

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
e 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  w
or

k 
w

ith
”

Pr
io

rit
y

Ac
tio

n
Le

ad
 In

di
vi

du
al

, 
su

b-
gr

ou
p 

ch
ai

r, 
or

 
ag

en
ci

es

O
ut

co
m

e(
s)

Ta
rg

et
 

D
at

e

13
.  

D
as

hb
oa

rd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t  

 C
ol

le
ct

 a
gr

ee
d 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 d
at

a,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

re
fle

ct
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
’s

 jo
ur

ne
y,

 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 in
fo

rm
 a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

an
 a

gr
ee

d 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r p

re
se

nt
in

g 
th

is
 d

at
a 

w
hi

ch
 is

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

ab
le

 to
 a

ll 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 is

 re
gu

la
rly

 
re

po
rte

d 
/ p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 

th
e 

C
H

SA
B

 

13
.1

 C
la

rif
y 

an
d 

ag
re

e 
a 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

of
 re

po
rti

ng
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 13

.2
 A

gr
ee

 h
ow

 v
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
is

 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

C
H

SA
B 

pa
rtn

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

Q
A 

Su
b-

gr
ou

p 
 

   Q
A 

Su
b-

gr
ou

p

C
H

SA
B 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

da
ta

 th
at

 c
an

 in
fo

rm
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

sh
ow

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e  

 C
on

si
st

en
cy

 o
f a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ad

ul
t s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip

14
.  

Fe
ed

ba
ck

 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
 

 Im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
os

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 

in
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ad
ul

ts
 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ne

ss
 a

nd
 

pr
op

or
tio

na
lit

y 
of

 re
fe

rra
ls

 
(c

on
ce

rn
s)

 

14
.1

 A
gr

ee
 a

 p
ro

to
co

l f
or

 fe
ed

ba
ck

/
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
pa

rtn
er

s 
 

14
.2

 R
ep

or
t/m

on
ito

r t
he

 re
sp

on
se

 
ra

te
s 

ba
ck

 to
 re

fe
rre

rs
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

se
 b

y 
so

ur
ce

, f
ee

db
ac

k 
on

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ne
ss

 
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 ta
ke

n

Q
A 

Su
b-

gr
ou

p 
 Q

A 
Su

b0
gr

ou
p

Im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

pa
rtn

er
s 

 
 Im

pr
ov

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 o
f r

ef
er

ra
ls

 fo
r 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 e
nq

ui
rie

s

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
nd

 Im
pa

ct

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   62 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 84



HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   63 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 85



City & Hackney Safeguarding Adults Board 
1 Hillman Street 
Hackney 
London 
E8 1DY

Email: CHSAB@hackney.gov.uk

Tel: 020 8356 6498

Design and printed by Hackney Council • September 2017 • HDS4028

HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 2016-17_v3.indd   64 30/08/2017   18:23

Page 86



Report to Hackney Health and Wellbeing Board

Item No: Date:  Wednesday 1 November 2017

Subject: Complaints Charter

Report From: Healthwatch Hackney

Summary: The 6th September Board meeting agreed to adopt the Complaints 
Charter, which is supported by all the members of the Board. Also 
agreed was a public launch of the Charter so Hackney people are 
made aware of the aspirations the local health and social care 
bodies are committed to.  
This report proposes a public launch at the next Health and Well 
Being Board on the 10 January 2018.
The charter was created out of a Healthwatch Hackney NHS 
Community Voice public meeting on ‘Complaining Effectively in the 
NHS’ on 31st January 2017, 85 people attended.
At the meeting members of the public called for a local patient’s 
charter on the rights of patients regarding the complaints 
processes, which all services and providers should sign up to and 
which treats complainants as valuable contributors to quality 
service delivery. 
A copy of the draft Complaints Charter is attached. 

Recommendation: Health and Well-Being Members agreed to public launch of the 
Complaint Charter at the 10 January 2018 

Contacts: Jon Williams, Director, Healthwatch Hackney 
jon@healthwatchhackney.co.uk 020 7923 8351

Page 87

Agenda Item 7

mailto:jon@healthwatchhackney.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
FINAL VERSION - HACKNEY COMPLAINTS CHARTER – HWBB SEPTEMBER 6TH 2017 
AGREED AND COMPLETED SEPTEMBER 26th 2017. 

HACKNEY’S COMPLAINTS CHARTER FOR 
HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

THE FOLLOWING ORGANISATIONS: 
 
- City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group (CHCCG) 
- East London NHS Foundation Trust (ELFT) 
- Homerton University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (HUHFT) 
- London Borough of Hackney (LBH) 
- Hackney Local Pharmaceutical Committee (HLPC) 
 
ARE COMMITTED TO: 
 
- MAKING HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE IN HACKNEY BETTER FOR EVERYONE 

- VALUING YOUR COMMENTS, SUGGESTIONS AND COMPLAINTS 

- ENSURINGALL COMPLAINTS ARE THROROUGHLY AND QUICKLY INVESTIGATED 

AND RESULT INENDURING SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS 

- TREATING YOU WITH COURTESY, RESPECT AND SENSITIVITY AT ALL TIMES 

    
WHEN YOU ARE DISSATIFIED WITH HEALTH OR SOCIAL CARE SERVICES 
 

 Tell us as soon as possible if you are unhappy with our services so                      
we can investigate your concerns and quickly put things right for you. 

 

 Let us know if you would like to try informal resolution of your concerns 
about our services. 

 

 Tell us if you have any particular needs that we should be aware of, e.g. 
an interpreter, advocate or other ways of ensuring  

                      effective communication with you. 
 

 Have confidence in our commitment to resolving your complaints and 
concerns, and always treat staff as you would expect them to treat you - 
with dignity and respect. 

 
 
OUR COMMITMENT TO YOU - WE WILL: 
 

 Acknowledge your complaint within three working days and explain how 
we will handle your complaint/s and what information we need. 
 

 Give you the name and contact details of the person or team that will 
investigate your complaint. 
 

Page 89



 

2 
FINAL VERSION - HACKNEY COMPLAINTS CHARTER – HWBB SEPTEMBER 6TH 2017 
AGREED AND COMPLETED SEPTEMBER 26th 2017. 

 Be happy to update you on the progress of your complaint if you contact 
the complaints department during the period of investigation. 

 

 Ensure that making a complaint will not adversely affect your ongoing or 
future treatment or care in any way. 

 

 Listen to your proposals and suggestions for service improvements and 
implement them if we agree your proposals will improve patient care.  

 
 

WE WILL FOLLOW AN OPEN AND FAIR PROCESS BY: 
 

 Listening to you carefully and making every effort to fully understand 
your complaint. 
 

 Requesting all the information we need from you. 
 

 Explaining how we will investigate all of your specific concerns. 
 

 Being open and honest with you throughout the investigation, e.g.by 
ensuring the Duty of Candour is complied with if you have suffered harm 
and ensuring you get copies of any relevant investigation reports. 

 

 Sharing, evidence, findings and facts with you once the process of 
investigation has been completed. 

 

 Ensuring you have access to the local complaints advocacy service and 
other appropriate advocacy services, to support and advise you during 
complaints investigations. 

 

 Explaining our decisions and recommendations, and how we have 
           reached them. 
 

 Carefully evaluating all the information we have gathered to make an   
                        decision on your complaint, and explaining how to obtain an  
                      independent investigation of your complaint through the Ombudsman, 
                      if you are dissatisfied with our findings. 
 

 
WE WILL GIVE YOU AN EXCELLENT SERVICE BY: 
 

 Always treating you with courtesy and respect. 
 
 Providing you with a full and detailed response to your complaint as 

     soon as possible. 
 

 Always responding fully to your complaint within 30 working days, unless 
there are exceptional circumstances - in which case we will explain the 
reasons for any delay. 

Page 90



 

3 
FINAL VERSION - HACKNEY COMPLAINTS CHARTER – HWBB SEPTEMBER 6TH 2017 
AGREED AND COMPLETED SEPTEMBER 26th 2017. 

 Making sure our services are easily accessible to you and giving you 
support and help if you need it. 

 

 Ensuring the information you give us is held securely and confidentially. 
 
 
USE YOUR COMPLAINT TO IMPROVE SERVICES BY: 
 

 Listening to your feedback and using it to improve our services. 
 

 Offering to meet with you to discuss your complaint. 
 

 Apologising if we have made mistakes and aiming to quickly put things 
right whenever possible. 

 

 Sharing with you what we have learned from investigating your complaint 
and telling you how we are working to improve services. 

 

 With your consent, sharing what we have learnt from your complaint with 
other health services, local authorities, commissioners, patients, 
Healthwatch and other patients’ and social care groups. 

 

 
WHAT YOU CAN EXPECT FROM THE ORGANISATION YOU HAVE COMPLAINED 
TO: 

 

 Address your complaint as quickly and effectively as possible. 
 

 Give you any information you ask for relevant to your complaint within     
                      a reasonable amount of time. 
 

 Show you how we have taken action on the recommendations arising 
from your complaint. 
 

 Consider a claim through our normal process for reimbursement if you 
have suffered loss as a result of our actions. 
 

 
THE OMBUDSMEN 
 

Health Service and Local Government Ombudsmen can make final decisions on 
complaints that have not been resolved locally by the NHS or the local authority: 

 

Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman:  
Tel: 0345 015 4033 … … … … …         www.ombudsman.org.uk 

 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman: 
Tel: 0300 061 0614 … …    www.lgo.org.uk/forms/ShowForm.asp?fm_fid=62 
 
 

Page 91

http://www.ombudsman.org.uk/
http://www.lgo.org.uk/forms/ShowForm.asp?fm_fid=62


 

4 
FINAL VERSION - HACKNEY COMPLAINTS CHARTER – HWBB SEPTEMBER 6TH 2017 
AGREED AND COMPLETED SEPTEMBER 26th 2017. 

THE INDEPENDENT COMPLAINTS ADVOCACY SERVICE 
 
Will support and advise people who wish to make complaints about local health and 
social care services, and promote the delivery of the Hackney Complaints Charter. 
 

 
HEALTHWATCH HACKNEY 
 
Will promote delivery of the Hackney Complaints Charter, by working with the 
organisation that have jointly signed the Charter to monitor compliance, propose 
service improvements and signpost you to appropriate services. 

 
 
ACCESS FOR EVERYONE 
 
Please let us know if you would like this Charter in different languages or formats, e.g. 
Easyread, large print, Braille, plain text or any other presentation or version. 
 
 
TELL US WHAT WENT WELL 
 
We want to know what went well for you so that services can be improved by learning 
from your positive experiences. 
 
 

CHARTER REVIEW 

This Charter will be reviewed biennially by its signatories and the HWBB. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



 

5 
FINAL VERSION - HACKNEY COMPLAINTS CHARTER – HWBB SEPTEMBER 6TH 2017 
AGREED AND COMPLETED SEPTEMBER 26th 2017. 

WHO DO I CONTACT FOR MORE INFORMATION? 

If you would like to talk about your concerns with someone independent from the care team, 

or get detailed information about each step of the NHS complaints process, you can contact 

the Patient Advice & Liaison Services (PALS) at HUHFT and ELFT. PALS can also help you 

resolve issues and problems quickly and informally.  

 
East London NHS Foundation Trust (ELFT) 
They can be contacted at:  
- Tel: Freephone 0800 783 4839 
- Email: PALSandComplaints@elft.nhs.uk 
- Post: ELFT, Trust Headquarters,9 Alie Street, London E1 8DE   
- Website: www.elft.nhs.uk/Contact-Us/Complaints-Comments-and-Suggestions 

Homerton University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (HUHFT)  
They can be contacted at:  
- Tel: PALS020 8510 7315 (including voicemail) 
- Email:  homertonpals@nhs.net 
- Tel: Complaints: 020 8510 5113 
- PALS Text phone: 07584445400 
- PALSFAX: 020 8510 7733  
- Email: Complaintscomplaints@homerton.nhs.uk 
- Post: HUHFT, Homerton Row, London, E9 6SRWebsite:  
- Complaints Website: 

www.homerton.nhs.uk/patients-and-visitors/patient-advice-liaison-service-
(pals)/complaints-service/ 

- Homerton website: www.homerton.nhs.uk 
 

City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group (CHCCG) 
The North and East London Commissioning Support Unit (NELCSU) ‘Patient Experience 
and Effectiveness Team’, manages complaints against the City and Hackney CCG. They 
can be contacted at:  
- Tel: 020 3688 1624 
- Email: nelcsu.complaints@nhs.net 
- Post: NELCSU, Clifton House, 75-77 Worship Street, London EC2A 2DU 
- Website: www.nelcsu.nhs.uk/aboutus/complaints.htm 

 
London Borough of Hackney (LBH) 

Adult Social Care Complaints:  
They can be contacted at:  
- Tel: 020 8356 6475 / 4697 / 4537 (Mon - Fri, 9am-5pm).  
- Post: Adult Social Care Complaints, Hackney Service Centre,1 Hillman Street E8 1DY  
- Email: complaints@hackney.gov.uk.  

 
Children and Young People's Access and Assessment Social Work Service:  
They can be contacted at:  
- Tel: 020 8356 5500 (Mon-Fri 9-5pm), 020 8356 2710 (Emergency Out of Hours) 
- Post: Children Social Care Complaints, Hackney Service Centre, 1 Hillman Street, E8 

1DY 

- Email: fast@hackney.gov.uk or children.complaints@hackney.gov.uk 

Page 93

http://www.elft.nhs.uk/Contact-Us/Complaints-Comments-and-Suggestions
mailto:complaints@homerton.nhs.uk
http://www.homerton.nhs.uk/patients-and-visitors/patient-advice-liaison-service-(pals)/complaints-service/
http://www.homerton.nhs.uk/patients-and-visitors/patient-advice-liaison-service-(pals)/complaints-service/
http://www.homerton.nhs.uk/
mailto:nelcsu.complaints@nhs.net
http://www.nelcsu.nhs.uk/aboutus/complaints.htm
mailto:complaints@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:fast@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:children.complaints@hackney.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 A Dementia Friendly Borough
	6 Report of the City and Hackney Adults Safeguarding Board
	HDS4028_CHSAB_Annual Report 20016-17_v3 Print Version

	7 Complaints Charter
	Complaints Charter


